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1 MR. EZEANYIM: At t h i s p o i n t , I'm going t o c a l l Case 

2 No. 14123 on Page 4. And t h i s i s the A p p l i c a t i o n of Judah O i l , 

3 LLC, f o r Approval of a Saltwater Disposal Well, Eddy County, 

4 New Mexico. 

5 C a l l f o r appearances. 

6 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce of Santa Fe 

7 repre s e n t i n g the a p p l i c a n t . I have two witnesses. 

8 MR. EZEANYIM: Any other appearances? 

9 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Good morning, Mr. Examiner. Ocean 

10 Munds-Dry w i t h the law f i r m of Holland and Hart here 

11 representing Marbob Energy Corporation. I have one witness. 

12 MR. EZEANYIM: Any other appearances? May a l l the 

13 witnesses stand and s t a t e your names and be sworn. Stand up, 

14 s t a t e your name and be sworn. 

15 MR. CAMPANELLA: My name i s James Campanella w i t h 

16 Judah O i l . 

17 MR. WELCH: Dan Welch w i t h VSW2, E&P. 

18 MR. MILLER: I'm Ray M i l l e r w i t h Marbob Energy 

19 Corporation. 

20 [Witnesses sworn.] 

21 MR. EZEANYIM: Do you have any opening statements or 

22 can we j u s t go ahead? 

23 MR. BRUCE: I j u s t have a very b r i e f one, 

24 Mr. Examiner. This i s a sal t w a t e r d i s p o s a l a p p l i c a t i o n . The 

25 a p p l i c a n t seeks approval t o convert the plugged and abandoned 
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1 Geronimo 27 State Com Well No. 2 t o a s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l , 

2 disposing the water i n t o the Wolfcamp and Cisco Formations. 

3 The w e l l i s lo c a t e d i n the southwest quarter/southwest quarter 

4 of Section 27, 17 South, 28 East. 

5 This acreage i s s t a t e minerals and s t a t e surface, and 

6 the subject w e l l was plugged and abandoned, I b e l i e v e , i n l a t e 

7 2004. Judah has been working f o r about a year t o o b t a i n 

8 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l approval f o r t h i s w e l l , and has obtained a 

9 business lease from the State Land O f f i c e f o r the s a l t w a t e r 

10 disposal w e l l . 

11 We b e l i e v e t h a t use of the w e l l w i l l prevent waste, 

12 and the a p p l i c a t i o n should be granted. Thank you. 

13 MR. EZEANYIM: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

14 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I f Mr. Bruce says something, you know 

15 I have t o say something. 

16 This i s a case where Marbob i s not o b j e c t i n g t o a 

17 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l a p p l i c a t i o n or the method or procedure. 

18 This r e a l l y becomes more of a l e g a l issue. Marbob i s a c t u a l l y 

19 the o i l and gas lessee of record on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r t r a c t . And 

20 also, the evidence w i l l show, and Mr. M i l l e r w i l l t e s t i f y , t h a t 

21 they a c t u a l l y own a p o r t i o n of t h i s w e l l bore. They paid f o r 

22 t h i s w e l l bore and they b e l i e v e , based not only on the o i l and 

23 gas lessee of record here, but also having ownership i n the 

24 w e l l bore and l o o k i n g at the p o t e n t i a l i n t h i s w e l l , t h a t 

25 there's s t i l l p r oductive zones l e f t i n t h i s w e l l bore. So we 
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1 b e l i e v e the g r a n t i n g of t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n would be v i o l a t i n g 

2 t h e i r c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s and w i l l cause waste. 

3 MR. EZEANYIM: Do you have any i n f o r m a t i o n whether 

4 the w e l l i s plugged and abandoned? 

5 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t i s plugged and abandoned. 

6 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. You may continue, Mr. Bruce. 

7 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, j u s t t o s t a r t w i t h , I'm 

8 going t o give you what's been marked as E x h i b i t 7. I f you 

9 could f i r s t t u r n t o Page 4 of E x h i b i t 7, and my witness w i l l be 

10 t e s t i f y i n g o f f of t h a t t i m e l i n e . 

11 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Bruce, do you have another copy? 

12 MR. BRUCE: C e r t a i n l y . 

13 JAMES CAMPANELLA 

14 a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn under oath, 

15 was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

16 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. BRUCE: 

18 Q. Please s t a t e your name f o r the record. 

19 A. My name i s James Campanella. 

20 Q. And what i s your r e l a t i o n s h i p t o Judah Oil? 

21 A. I am the owner/operator of Judah O i l , LLC. 

22 Q. Could you describe your business background f o r 

23 the Examiner i n the o i l and gas business? 

24 A. Well, I a c t u a l l y entered the o i l and gas business 

25 as I worked f o r my uncles at age 13 i n a pipe yard, 
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1 s t r a i g h t e n i n g the pipe and doing -- cleaning tanks and s t u f f 

2 l i k e t h a t . I was married i n 197 9 and went t o work f o r my 

3 f a t h e r - i n - l a w i n the chemical -- o i l f i e l d chemical business, 

4 and worked f o r him f o r e i g h t years; p r o d u c t i o n chemicals, 

5 d r i l l i n g chemicals and whatnot. I also contracted pumps and 

6 w e l l s f o r him. 
7 Then I l e f t t h a t p o s i t i o n and went t o work f o r a 

8 company pumping some wells as a company pumper f o r a year. I 

9 got out of the business f o r two years and then went back i n t o 

10 c o n t r a c t -- w e l l , a c t u a l l y , pumping f o r Ray Westhoff f o r a 

11 year. 

12 And then I moved on t o Burnett O i l and pumped and 

13 roustabout f o r Burnett O i l f o r a year. And then I bought a 

14 c o n t r a c t pumping business and pumped f o r 14 years u n t i l 2006. 

15 I n 1995, I purchased some s t r i p p e r w e l l s and was able 

16 t o o b t a i n some more wells as I was pumping. I was able t o f i n d 

17 some w e l l s . And t h a t ' s how I got s t a r t e d i n the o i l and gas 

18 producing business. 

19 Q. Okay. So you have been employed i n the o i l and 

20 gas businesses f o r a number of decades and you don't have any 

21 p a r t i c u l a r degree i n any profession? 

22 A. No, I don't. 

23 Q. But f o r Judah O i l on the operations end, do you 

24 oversee or supervise a l l of i t s operations? 

25 A. Yes, I do. 
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1 Q. Does Judah O i l have any other s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l 

2 wells? 

3 A. Yes, we have one. 

4 Q. Okay. So you are f a m i l i a r w i t h the procedures 

5 i n v o l v e d i n o b t a i n i n g a s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l well? 

6 A. Yes, I am. 

7 Q. I've r e f e r r e d you t o Page 4 of E x h i b i t 7. 

8 Without r e i t e r a t i n g e v e r y t h i n g , could you o u t l i n e what you have 

9 done t o o b t a i n s a l t w a t e r disposal approval f o r the subject 

10 well? 

11 A. I n roughly July of 2007, I operated a w e l l i n 

12 Section 28 of 17 South, 28 East. And Edge Petroleum has a 

13 w e l l , a gas w e l l t h a t ' s i n t h i s same q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r s e c t i o n as 

14 the w e l l I operate. And they sent me an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

15 dis p o s a l on the Geronimo 28, State No. 1. And a t t h a t time, I 

16 s t a r t e d l o o k i n g -- I needed -- I was i n the disp o s a l -- I was 

17 t r y i n g t o f i n d a d i s p o s a l , so t h i s caught my eye. So I s t a r t e d 

18 l o o k i n g i n t h a t area. 

19 I've a c t u a l l y looked south of A r t e s i a f o r d i s p o s a l , 

20 but east of A r t e s i a there's a much more need f o r d i s p o s a l , so I 

21 r e a l l y s t a r t e d doing an extensive search i n t h a t area, l o o k i n g 

22 f o r a comparable w e l l bore, a w e l l bore t h a t would make a good 

23 disposal candidate. 

24 Q. Okay. And you f i n a l l y i d e n t i f i e d the Geronimo 27 

2 5 No. 2? 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
83223910-c5b2-478f-95fb-ce3bb828dab3 



Page 9 

1 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

2 Q. Since t h a t time -- now, t h i s matter has been set 

3 f o r hearing. Did you o r i g i n a l l y apply t o the D i v i s i o n f o r 

4 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l a u t h o r i t y a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y ? 

5 A. Yes, I d i d . 

6 Q. And d i d any p a r t i e s o b j e c t at t h a t time? 

7 A. We had -- RKI objected t o the a p p l i c a t i o n . 

8 Q. Okay. And d i d you subsequently work w i t h RKI t o 

9 assuage t h e i r concerns? 

10 A. Yes. We thought we had a compromise worked out. 

11 Q. And i s t h a t r e f l e c t e d i n E x h i b i t 1 submitted t o 

12 the Examiner, the s t i p u l a t i o n ? 

13 A. This i s a c t u a l l y i n reference t o the second time 

14 t h a t I a p p l i e d f o r the a p p l i c a t i o n . We had reached an 

15 agreement the f i r s t time. Their g e o l o g i s t looked at i t and 

16 wanted t o go ahead and preserve some more zone, so t h i s i s the 

17 s t i p u l a t i o n they came up w i t h and we agreed t o s a t i s f y t h e i r 

18 concerns. 

19 Q. And b a s i c a l l y , I b e l i e v e you were o r i g i n a l l y 

20 going to i n j e c t at a l e v e l of 7100 f e e t , and you agreed t o 

21 r e s t r i c t t h a t t o below 7800 feet? 

22 A. 7782. 

23 Q. 7782 f e e t . So you ap p l i e d once, RKI objected, 

24 you thought you had addressed t h e i r concerns, you r e a p p l i e d and 

25 n o t i f i e d everyone? 

Jt 
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1 A. Correct. 

2 Q. And RKI objected again? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. And t h a t ' s when you reached the agreement t h a t i s 

5 r e f l e c t e d i n the s t i p u l a t i o n ? 

6 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. Okay. And then you a p p l i e d a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y a 

8 t h i r d time? 

9 A. Right. 

10 Q. And was t h a t when -- and again, everybody who i s 

11 e n t i t l e d t o n o t i c e of the C-108 was given n o t i c e , c o r r e c t ? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. And who objected at t h a t time? 

14 A. Marbob Energy and P i t c h Energy. 

15 Q. And as a r e s u l t , t h i s matter was set f o r hearing? 

16 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

17 Q. Okay. I f you'd r e f e r t o your E x h i b i t 2 which i s 

18 the C-108, the next witness w i l l address most of the matters i n 

19 t h a t e x h i b i t , w i l l he not? 

20 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. But i f you could t u r n t o , I t h i n k , the second 

22 page of t h a t e x h i b i t , could you j u s t discuss b a s i c a l l y what 

23 type of a u t h o r i t y you seek i n terms of volumes and pressures? 

24 A. We're asking t o dispose of between 4,000 t o 

25 8,000 b a r r e l s of water per day and stay w i t h i n the OCD 
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1 g u i d e l i n e s w i t h our pressure of 1556 and dispose i n t o no 

2 f u r t h e r above 7282. From 7282 down. 

3 Q. 7782. 

4 A. 7782. I'm so r r y . 

5 Q. And the OCD's r e s t r i c t i o n i s .2 psi? 

6 A. Correct. 

7 Q. You do not seek any higher pressure? 

8 A. No, I do not. 

9 Q. And i s e x h i b i t — what i s E x h i b i t 3? I s t h a t 

10 simply my A f f i d a v i t of Notice t o the o b j e c t i n g p a r t i e s i n t h i s 

11 case? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 MR. BRUCE: And, Mr. Examiner, we d i d also give 

14 n o t i c e t o the State Land O f f i c e of t h i s hearing, even though 

15 they had p r e v i o u s l y not objected t o i t . 

16 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. 

17 MR. BROOKS: I s the State the surface owner? 

18 MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

19 Q. (By Mr. Bruce): And then, when d i d you s t a r t 

20 working on o b t a i n i n g a business lease from the State of 

21 New Mexico? 

22 A. I s t a r t e d on the business lease i n February. We 

23 a c t u a l l y submitted the business lease t o the State of 

24 New Mexico Land O f f i c e on February 12th, I bel i e v e -- i s when 

25 we mailed the a p p l i c a t i o n . 
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1 Q. Okay. And you have obtained a business lease? 

2 A. Yes, I have. 

3 Q. And i s E x h i b i t 4 a copy of t h a t business lease? 

4 A. Yes, i t i s . 

5 Q. From the Land O f f i c e approving t h i s subject w e l l 

6 as a s a l t w a t e r disposal well? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 5? 

9 A. This i s the Right of Way g i v i n g me permission t o 

10 use the road t o access the l o c a t i o n approved by the New Mexico 

11 State Land O f f i c e . 

12 Q. Okay. And again, t h i s was needed because i t i s 

13 s t a t e surface? 

14 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. Under the business lease, what does the State 

16 Land O f f i c e receive? 

17 A. Well, they receive -- a c t u a l l y , t h i s year t h e y ' l l 

18 receive $7,500 plus 10 cents a b a r r e l f o r every b a r r e l t h a t i s 

19 disposed of or t h a t the w e l l takes. As of next year, i t goes 

20 t o $10,000, and t h a t w i l l be an annual fee plus 10 cents a 

21 b a r r e l . 

22 Q. I s there another s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l needed 

23 i n t h i s area? 

24 A. Yes, s i r , there i s . 

25 Q. And what i s E x h i b i t 6? 
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1 A. E x h i b i t 6 i s some l e t t e r s t h a t we received from 

2 some t r u c k i n g companies j u s t s t a t i n g t h a t they need some 

3 a d d i t i o n a l d i s p o s a l i n the area. 

4 Q. Okay. Now, what type of -- w e l l , l e t ' s get f i r s t 

5 of a l l t o the costs of t h i s w e l l . Assuming you are allowed t o 

6 use t h i s w e l l as a sa l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l , what w i l l be the 

7 approximate cost? 

8 A. We're loo k i n g at between $750,000 t o $1 m i l l i o n 

9 t o re-complete and b u i l d a b a t t e r y and whatnot. 

10 Q. I f you had to d r i l l a new s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l 

11 t o the same depth, what would the approximate cost be? 

12 A. Approximately around $2 m i l l i o n . 

13 Q. So using t h i s w e l l w i l l prevent economic waste, 

14 w i l l i t not? 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t , i t w i l l . 

16 Q. Assuming you o b t a i n or get the -- have the 

17 i n j e c t i o n volumes you a n t i c i p a t e , what type of revenues w i l l 

18 the Land O f f i c e receive from i t s 10 cents per b a r r e l i n j e c t i o n ? 

19 A. We estimate over a 10-year p e r i o d they would 

20 receive roughly between $1.5 and $2.5 m i l l i o n i n revenue. 

21 Q. You said you spent some time l o o k i n g f o r an 

22 acceptable w e l l bore. Are there any other a v a i l a b l e w e l l bores 

23 i n t h i s area? 

24 A. We d i d an extensive search. There may be one 

25 t h a t we missed somewhere, but as f a r as my search, l o o k i n g at 
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1 l o c a t i o n -- which i s very important f o r a commercial 

2 d i s p o s a l w e l l -- I couldn't f i n d any di s p o s a l w e l l s t h a t would 

3 pass a l l the s c r u t i n y t h a t i t takes t o have a di s p o s a l w e l l . 

4 With the w e l l s around i t -- you have t o look a t the w e l l s 

5 around i t t o make sure t h e i r w e l l bores have been cemented 

6 s u f f i c i e n t l y and a l l t h a t . 

7 Q. And there are l i t e r a l l y hundreds i f not thousands 

8 of w e l l s i n the area, r i g h t ? 

9 A. There are l o t s of w e l l s i n t h i s area. 

10 Q. And t h i s was the only one you found? 

11 A. This i s the only one t h a t I found t h a t was — f o r 

12 l o c a t i o n , t h i s i s the only one t h a t I found t h a t we could 

13 re-enter and make a good disposal w e l l out of i t . 

14 Q. How f a r away i s the next a v a i l a b l e commercial 

15 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l well? 

16 A. About three miles away there i s a w e l l operated 

17 by I&W, but i t i s a closed system. T h e y ' l l j u s t l e t a couple 

18 of others i n . I&W i s a t r u c k i n g company. Other than t h a t , 

19 they have t o go a l l the way t o Loco H i l l s , which i s another 15 

20 to 18 mi l e s , t o the next d i s p o s a l . 

21 Q. So t h i s w i l l be b e n e f i c i a l t o the other companies 

22 and operators so they won't have t o t r u c k the water so f a r ? 

23 A. That's t r u e . And also i t w i l l allow other 

24 companies i n the area t o run a p i p e l i n e i f they need t o f o r 

25 t h i s w e l l t o service also. 
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1 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 1 through 6, other than the C-108 

2 E x h i b i t 2, prepared by you or under your s u p e r v i s i o n or 

3 obtained from company records? 

4 A. Yes, they were. 

5 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I move the admission of 

6 E x h i b i t s 1 and 3 through 6. 

7 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

8 MR. EZEANYIM: E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 -- I mean, 3 through 

9 6 w i l l be admitted. 

10 [ A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t s 1 & 3 through 6 admitted i n t o 

11 evidence.] 

12 MR. BRUCE: And I pass the witness. 

13 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

14 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

15 Q. Mr. Campanella, you said you operate one other 

16 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l . Where i s that ? 

17 A. I t ' s i n Section 33, Township 18 South, 31 East, 

18 Unit L e t t e r C. 

19 Q. And do you also operate o i l and gas as well? 

2 0 A. Yes, ma'am, I do. 

21 Q. Where are your operations i n r e l a t i o n t o t h i s 

22 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l well? 

23 A. I have a w e l l a c t u a l l y , l i k e I sa i d before, 

24 which i s the Welch State No. 1, which i s i n Section 28, which 

25 i s the s e c t i o n over from t h i s proposed w e l l . I also have some 
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1 other w e l l s t h a t are roughly e i g h t miles south of t h i s w e l l . I 

2 have some we l l s south of Carlsbad. I have some production east 

3 of Carlsbad. I have some we l l s i n Chaves County also. 

4 Q. Thank you. I'm l o o k i n g a t — and I understand 

5 t h a t you have someone else from your company review the 

6 C-108 -- but I wonder on E x h i b i t No. 2 where -- I don't see the 

7 date t h a t i t was submitted. Do you know when i t was o r i g i n a l l y 

8 submitted? 

9 A. To be honest w i t h you, I b e l i e v e t h i s was 

10 submitted around the -- you know, I b e t t e r not say. I know i t 

11 was between the 6th and the 14th of March t h a t i t was 

12 submitted. 

13 Q. And then I'm l o o k i n g at your E x h i b i t No. 5 which 

14 i s a copy of your r i g h t - o f - w a y easements. 

15 A. Okay. 

16 Q. Do you r e c a l l when you f i r s t a p p l i ed f o r 

17 rig h t - o f - w a y w i t h the State Land Of f i c e ? 

18 A. I a p p l i e d f o r the ri g h t - o f - w a y at the same time 

19 t h a t I ap p l i e d f o r the business lease, which was i n February. 

20 Q. And I can't help but n o t i c e on E x h i b i t No. 4 t h a t 

21 you got t h i s j u s t i n the n i c k of time. I t looks l i k e i t was --

22 A. I've been working -- I have been on t h i s . 

23 Q. Okay. I t got there i n time. 

24 A. I t sure d i d . 

25 Q. Okay. Mr. Campanella, do you know who has 
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1 ownership f o r the w e l l bore f o r the Geronimo? 

2 A. The State of New Mexico. 

3 Q. How do you know that ? 

4 A. I t a l k e d w i t h J e f f Alvers of the State Land 

5 O f f i c e . He said once a w e l l i s plugged and abandoned on s t a t e 

6 land i t a u t o m a t i c a l l y r e v e r t s back t o the s t a t e ' s possession. 

7 Q. Okay. And I t h i n k you said -- I j u s t want t o 

8 make sure I heard your testimony c o r r e c t l y . There i s another 

9 s a l t w a t e r disposal w e l l about three miles away from t h i s 

10 l o c a t i o n ? 

11 A. The S o l t , yes, ma'am. 

12 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Okay. I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l the 

13 questions I have. Thank you. 

14 MR. EZEANYIM: Mr. Brooks? 

15 MR. BROOKS: No. I don't t h i n k I have any questions 

16 f o r the witness. 

17 MR. WARNELL: No questions. 

18 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. I have a couple. 

19 EXAMINATION 

20 BY MR. EZEANYIM: 

21 Q. You t a l k e d about cost of using t h i s w e l l as 

22 compared w i t h using another w e l l . Can you go through t h a t 

2 3 testimony again how much i t would cost you t o complete t h i s 

24 w e l l i n s tead of d r i l l i n g another well? 

25 A. Okay. The cost -- the AFE f o r t h i s w e l l i s 
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1 roughly $750,000. And when I made t h i s AFE, i t was a c t u a l l y --

2 we wrote i t up around February. Now p r i c e s have increased 

3 since then w i t h s t e e l and other costs. They've r a i s e d t h e i r 

4 costs. Fuel surcharges have gone up. We're l o o k i n g at from 

5 $750,000 t o $1 m i l l i o n . 
6 Q. Okay. I f you d r i l l on t h a t , how much w i l l t h a t 

7 cost? 

8 A. We estimate between $1.5 and $2 m i l l i o n t o d r i l l 

9 the same w e l l . 

10 Q. Okay. 

11 A. And t h a t ' s w i t h no problems. 

12 Q. Okay. You are t a l k i n g about s t a t e r e c e i p t s , 

13 because s t a t e , you know --

14 A. Right. 

15 Q. What d i d you say about tha t ? Can you repeat 

16 that ? 

17 A. Sure. 

18 Q. How d i d you come out w i t h t h a t amount of money? 

19 A. We're es t i m a t i n g a t 4,000 b a r r e l s of water a day 

20 at $0.10 a b a r r e l over a 10-year p e r i o d . The d i f f e r e n c e j 

21 between a disp o s a l w e l l and a producing w e l l i s a disp o s a l w e l l 

22 doesn't have a d e p l e t i o n r a t i o , depending on who brings water. 

23 I s t i l l take as much water now on my one disposal w e l l as I d i d 

24 when I opened i t up i n 2004. I 

i 
25 So we based our numbers on the s t a t e r e c e i v i n g $0.10 j 

I 
I 
I 
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1 a b a r r e l over a 10-year pe r i o d at 4,000 b a r r e l s of water a day. 

2 And we're l o o k i n g between $1.5 and $2.5 m i l l i o n . About $100 --

3 we're l o o k i n g at about $120,000 t o $130,000 a year. 

4 Q. Okay. You said there are a l o t of w e l l s i n t h i s 

5 area and the only w e l l you t h i n k you could use i s t h i s w e l l . 

6 Why i s t h a t ? 

7 A. Well, you probably have heard the saying, 

8 "Location, l o c a t i o n , l o c a t i o n . " 

9 Well, t h i s w e l l i s l o c a t e d i n a r e a l l y -- i t ' s 2/10 

10 of a mil e o f f of 82, Highway 82, which i s the road t h a t goes 

11 between A r t e s i a and Loco H i l l s . I t s i t s 2/10 of a mil e o f f of 

12 t h a t . There's a l o t of t r u c k s coming from west of A r t e s i a 

13 where they're d r i l l i n g a l o t of Wolfcamp w e l l s i n t h a t area and 

14 t a k i n g t h a t . They have access. Plus, there's also several 

15 other -- there's a couple of other main roads, 360 and 206, 

16 which are main roads coming n o r t h and south t h a t t i e i n t o 82 

17 r e a l close t o t h i s a lso. 

18 So the l o c a t i o n of t h i s w e l l bore i s j u s t r e a l l y i n a 

19 great spot f o r the t r u c k e r s f o r them t o use. And you want t o 

20 keep t r u c k s o f f the road a long ways because i t ' s a l o t of wear 

21 and tear on t h e i r t r u c k s . So i f you can stay close t o a paved 

22 area, i t r e a l l y works t o t h e i r advantage. 

23 Q. And so the system w i l l be open? 

24 A. Pardon me? 

25 Q. The system w i l l be open? 
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Yes . 

2 Q. Open system? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. Anyway, t h i s i s an SWD, r i g h t ? 

5 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

6 Q. You have another SWD? What i s the distance from 

7 t h a t SWD w e l l t o t h i s one? 

8 A. The other SWD w e l l i s around 20 -- probably close 

9 to 25 m i l e s . 

10 Q. Okay. 

11 A. Maybe even 30 miles away. 

12 Q. From t h i s Geronimo? 

13 A. From t h i s Geronimo, yes, s i r . 

14 Q. So you approached the State of New Mexico t o get 

15 t h i s orphan w e l l from them because once i t ' s plugged and 

16 abandoned -- since the State has the surface ownership, you 

17 went there and got a r i g h t - o f - w a y -- i s t h a t a right-of-way? 

18 A. Right. I t ' s a c t u a l l y a business lease. 

19 Q. Okay. Business lease. Did they, at t h a t 

20 p o i n t -- d i d they mention any other p a r t y t h a t owns the well? 

21 A. From t a l k i n g w i t h the State, they said once the 

22 w e l l i s plugged and abandoned, i t goes back to the pr o p e r t y of 

23 the State of New Mexico. 

24 MR. EZEANYIM: No f u r t h e r questions. 

25 MR. BRUCE: I c a l l Mr. Welch t o the stand. 
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1 MR. BROOKS: Would you want t o take recess t o allow 

2 the witness t o set up? 

3 MR. EZEANYIM: We'll take a 5-minute recess, then. 

4 [Recess taken from 9:49 a.m. t o 9:57 a.m., and 

5 testimony continued as f o l l o w s : ] 

6 MR. EZEANYIM: Let's go back on the record now and 

7 continue w i t h Case No. 14123. 

8 Mr. Bruce? 

9 MR. BRUCE: The next witness i s Mr. Van Welch. 

10 VAN WELCH 

11 a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn under oath, 

12 was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

13 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

14 BY MR. BRUCE: 

15 Q. Mr. Welch, would you s t a t e your name and c i t y of 

16 residence f o r the record. 

17 A. Van S. Welch, I I , Houston, Texas. 

18 Q. By pr o f e s s i o n , what are you? 

19 A. I'm a p r o f e s s i o n a l engineer i n the State of 

20 Texas. 

21 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y -- and what i s your 

22 r e l a t i o n s h i p t o Judah Oil? 

23 A. We're i n p a r t n e r s h i p i n one w e l l i n Texas and 

24 we're going t o be partners i n the c u r r e n t Geronimo 27 Well. 

25 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 
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1 D i v i s i o n ? 

2 A No, I have not. 

3 Q Would you summarize your edu c a t i o n a l and 

4 employment bac kground f o r the Examiner? 

5 A. Sure . I was born and r a i s e d i n A r t e s i a , 

6 New Mexico, and graduated from New Mexico State, Las Cruces, 

7 w i t h a mechanical engineering degree. I j o i n e d Pan American, 

8 which was Amoco i n 1968. I've been -- j o i n e d them as a 

9 pro d u c t i o n engineer, but moved i n t o r e s e r v o i r engineering i n 

10 1970. And I've been a r e s e r v o i r engineer f o r the l a s t 

11 37 years. 

12 I've worked about 20 years i n t e r n a t i o n a l l y and 

13 20 years i n the US. I have done extensive r e s e r v o i r 

14 engineering s i m u l a t i o n studies i n US, Mexico, South America, 

15 M.E., Russia, A f r i c a , and North Sea. I've done a great deal of 

16 a c q u i s i t i o n evaluations i n the US, Gulf of Mexico, A l g e r i a , 

17 Egypt, Argentina, Russia, B r a z i l , B o l i v i a , China Sea, Indonesia 

18 and Venezuela. I've also done a great deal of e x p l o r a t i o n work 

19 d u r i n g the course of t h i s time. I've had p r i o r l i t i g a t i o n , 

20 d e p o s i t i o n , expert witness testimony at various times. 

21 C u r r e n t l y I'm under c o n t r a c t t o S h e l l O i l Company --

22 I have been f o r the l a s t two years -- inv o l v e d w i t h t h e i r very 

23 c o n f i d e n t i a l , unconventional o i l processes. I've spent one 

24 year where we are working on the process t o -- i t ' s c a l l e d 

25 I n s i t u Conversion, where we crack Kerogen downhole and produce 
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1 i t back as a f l u i d product, gas product -- i n Colorado O i l 

2 Shales. 

3 And f o r the l a s t year, we're i n the process of 

4 s t a r t i n g up one of the f i r s t IUP processes which i s I n s i t u 

5 upgrading Bitumen where we crack i t downhole, produce i t back 

6 as a gas. We're hoping t o k i c k o f f a p r o j e c t t here i n the next 

7 few years as a f i r s t major p r o j e c t i n Canada. 

8 Q. And you are a r e g i s t e r e d p r o f e s s i o n a l engineer? 

9 A. Yes. I am i n the State of Texas. 

10 Q. And you've p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the Texas 

11 R a i l r o a d Commission? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the engineering matters 

14 r e l a t e d not only t o the conversation of the s a l t w a t e r disposal 

15 w e l l , but as t o other r e s e r v o i r matters i n t h i s area? 

16 A. Yes, I am. 

17 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender Mr. Welch as an 

18 expert petroleum engineer. 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

20 MR. EZEANYIM: Mr. Welch, which country d i d you work 

21 i n i n A f r i c a ? 

22 THE WITNESS: A l g e r i a and predominantly — A l g e r i a 

23 and Egypt, two years i n each. 

24 Q. (By Mr. Bruce): Now, Mr. Welch, I've submitted 

25 your PowerPoint p r e s e n t a t i o n as E x h i b i t 7, and those pages are 
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1 numbered, so as you r o l l through your e x h i b i t s , i t would 

2 probably help, i n case the Examiners are reviewing what's i n 

3 f r o n t of them r a t h e r than what's on the screen, i f you could 

4 i d e n t i f y the page number f o r them. 

5 A. Sure. Page number should b a s i c a l l y be on each 

6 e x h i b i t . There are a couple of minor r e v i s i o n s t h a t I d i d l a s t 

7 n i g h t and t h i s morning, so t h a t handout w i l l have a couple of 

8 very minor d i f f e r e n c e s . 

9 Q. And maybe s t a r t o f f , once you get t o i t -- i f you 

10 want t o introduce i t and then maybe move t o Page 3 t o j u s t --

11 an area p l a t t o show where we are. 

12 A. This i s a map of the general area where the Judah 

13 proposed s a l t w a t e r disposal Geronimo No. 27 i s . I t ' s i n Unit M 

14 i n Section 27 of Township 17 South, Range 28 East, which i s 

15 lo c a t e d r i g h t here. There are only two other deep pe n e t r a t i o n s 

16 i n t h i s area t h a t i n t e r s e c t the Wolfcamp Cisco t h a t could 

17 p o s s i b l y be s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l . One of them i s already 

18 approved f o r s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l f o r Edge Energy, which i s 

19 l o c a t e d here. Then you have a producing w e l l , the Geronimo 33, 

20 which i s a gas production i n the pen. 

21 Q. And again, t h a t inner c i r c l e i s the one-half mile 

22 area review f o r the C-108? 

23 A. Right. I've got a b e t t e r map of t h i s coming up. 

24 Q. Okay. 

25 A. No. 5 was the summary of my work h i s t o r y . No. 6 
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1 i s a legend of the l o c a l area of produc t i o n w i t h i n a h a l f - m i l e 

2 radius of the Geronimo. B a s i c a l l y , there are s i x productive 

3 h o r i z o n t a l s . They're color-coded and I ' l l show up a map i n 

4 j u s t a minute. But b a s i c a l l y you have the Yates-Seven Rivers 

5 at about 500 f e e t . You have -- w i t h i n t h i s area, you have two 

6 d i f f e r e n t Queen-Grayburg-San Andres designations. One i s 

7 c a l l e d the Red Lake and one i s c a l l e d the A r t e s i a . 

8 E s s e n t i a l l y , they're the same produc t i o n horizon. 

9 Below t h a t you have produ c t i o n i n the Glorieta-Yeso. 

10 I t ' s very common f o r the Glorieta-Yeso t o be commingled w i t h 

11 the Queen-Grayburg-San Andres. Below t h a t you have the mighty 

12 Empire Abo F i e l d , which covers most of the area i n t h i s p a r t . 

13 The Wolfcamp, Empire Wolfcamp i s also p r o d u c t i v e . And the 

14 Empire Penn State, which i s about 10,000 f e e t , has also been 

15 produced. 

16 This i s E x h i b i t No. 7. I went through the s t a t e 

17 records and c o l o r coded a l l the w e l l s , b a s i c a l l y , w i t h i n the 

18 one-half m i l e radius t h a t I could f i n d , and they're c o l o r coded 

19 f o r p r o d u c t i o n . The ones marked w i t h a slash I t h i n k are 

20 e i t h e r abandoned or they don't produce any f u r t h e r . You have a 

21 great deal of shallow p r o d u c t i o n i n the area. Nearly every 10 

22 acres are excuse me -- every 40 acres or 10 acres y o u ' l l 

23 have an Empire Abo w e l l , which are shown i n green. Then you 

24 have your Glorieta-Yeso p r o d u c t i o n . You have one w e l l here, 

25 one w e l l here. 
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1 Q. When you say "here," s t a t e the s e c t i o n , please. 

2 A. Sure -- excuse me. This i s the Section 34 

3 Unit D. I n the s e c t i o n r i g h t here, Section 28, you have a 

4 Yeso-Glorieta w e l l . You also have Yeso production i n 

5 Section 27 i n P, Unit P. So there's a great deal of production 

6 i n the area. And there's the No. 33 w e l l , which I said i s an 

7 Empire Abo w e l l . So you have some l i m i t e d deep produc t i o n , but 

8 predominantly i t ' s shallow p r o d u c t i o n . 

9 Next, I ' d l i k e t o j u s t discuss the c u r r e n t i n j e c t i o n 

10 p r o j e c t s t h a t e x i s t i n the area. There are s a l t w a t e r disposal 

11 w e l l s . Marbob State MO #1, there's a Wolfcamp i n j e c t i o n . I 

12 found i n the records t h a t a Washington #34 -- i t was connoted 

13 as an Arco Permian. I understand t h i s may be a BP w e l l . I'm 

14 not p o s i t i v e . I n the records I found i t as an Arco. 

15 Edge Petroleum Geronimo 28 i s approved f o r a Cisco 

16 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l . You also have an A r t e s i a 

17 Queen-Grayburg-San Andres w a t e r f l o o d at about 1270 f e e t . The 

18 Empire Abo Unit has been under i n j e c t i o n f o r years, of 

19 d i f f e r e n t s o r t s . 
20 The f o l l o w i n g i s a cross s e c t i o n f o r the s a l t w a t e r 

21 d i s p o s a l w e l l s . F i r s t you have the Geronimo w e l l which was 

22 approved f o r the Cisco, which i s located here. 

23 MR. EZEANYIM: Mr. Welch, please, could you go back 

24 t o the l a s t s l i d e ? 

25 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 
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1 MR. EZEANYIM: Are these w e l l s here? 

2 THE WITNESS: Yes. These are w e l l s , but t h i s i s a 

3 wa t e r f l o o d u n i t , and t h i s i s the Empire Abo wa t e r f l o o d gas 

4 i n j e c t i o n u n i t . 

5 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. The other one then — 

6 THE WITNESS: These are a l l i n d i v i d u a l w e l l s . 

7 MR. EZEANYIM: Saltwater disposal? 

8 THE WITNESS: Yes. These three w e l l s here, two of 

9 them are on s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l according t o the l a t e s t records. 

10 MR. EZEANYIM: That one going t o the Wolfcamp-Cisco, 

11 how f a r away are they from Geronimo; do you know? 

12 THE WITNESS: Yes. I t ' s r i g h t here. This i s the 

13 Geronimo No. 28. I t ' s w i t h i n one-half m i l e . This i s a 

14 h a l f - m i l e r i n g . And t h i s i s the Judah proposed w e l l . This i s 

15 the Marbob State MO #1 Wolfcamp i n j e c t o r . 

16 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. 

17 THE WITNESS: And then a m i l e away you have t h i s Arco 

18 Washington #34 Wolfcamp-Cisco i n j e c t o r . 

19 Q. (By Mr. Bruce): Mr. Welch, the Edge w e l l , the 

20 Geronimo 28, i n j e c t i o n has not commenced yet? 

21 A. I t has not commenced y e t . I t i s approved by the 

22 State, but they have not converted i t . I t ' s been a deep Penn 

23 w e l l , and I t h i n k t h e y ' l l probably convert f a i r l y soon. This 

24 i s the w e l l t h a t my partner -- James Campanella t r i e d to 

25 acquire t h a t w e l l bore, but they wouldn't s e l l . 
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1 Q. Okay. 

2 MR. EZEANYIM: Go ahead. 

3 A. Okay. This i s a cross s e c t i o n . This i s the same 

4 down here. This i s a cross s e c t i o n of the w e l l logs f o r j u s t 

5 t o demonstrate where the d i f f e r e n t w e l l s are i n j e c t i n g or would 

6 be i n j e c t i n g i f t h i s w e l l was converted. This i s , again, the 

7 Geronimo No. 28. I t ' s approved f o r i n j e c t i o n s t r i c t l y i n the 

8 Cisco over about 300 f e e t . I t ' s about 8,000 f e e t t o , I t h i n k , 

9 8300 f e e t . The Marbob w e l l -- I'm s o r r y -- I can't read my 

10 numbers there -- but the Marbob w e l l only i n j e c t s i n t o the 

11 Wolfcamp, and t h a t ' s from about 7900 f e e t t o 8,000 f e e t . 

12 The Judah w e l l t h a t we are recommending would be 

13 i n j e c t i n g i n t o the i n t e r v a l of 72 -- excuse me -- 7782 f e e t i n 

14 the Wolfcamp down through the Cisco t o 8300 f e e t . The 

15 Washington 34 Well, about a mil e away, i s approved f o r 

16 i n j e c t i o n i n the Wolfcamp-Cisco, and t h a t t o t a l i n t e r v a l i s 

17 from 7200 f e e t down t o 9140 f e e t . So i t ' s a very s i g n i f i c a n t 

18 i n t e r v a l t h a t has been accepted as a di s p o s a l throughout t h i s 

19 area. 

20 MR. EZEANYIM: Who owns No. 28? 

21 THE WITNESS: Excuse me? 

22 MR. EZEANYIM: Who owns 28? 

23 THE WITNESS: 29 i s Edge Petroleum. 

24 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. And the Judah owns No. 27? 

25 THE WITNESS: Right. And Marbob owns the State 
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1 MO #1. 

2 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. State MO #1 i s an i n j e c t i o n 

3 w e l l where? 

4 THE WITNESS: I t ' s a Wolfcamp. 

5 MR. EZEANYIM: Wolfcamp at 7900 t o — 

6 THE WITNESS: Right. 7900 t o 8000 f e e t . 

7 MR. EZEANYIM: And the Judah w i l l be a t — 

8 THE WITNESS: They're going t o be a t 7782 down t o 

9 8300 f e e t . 

10 MR. EZEANYIM: That i s the proposed well? 

11 THE WITNESS: Yes. And the Arco or BP w e l l has a 

12 very extensive i n t e r v a l approved f o r i n j e c t i o n . 

13 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. 

14 A. Okay. Next I ' d l i k e t o cover f r e s h water i n the 

15 area. This was e x t r a c t e d from the a p p l i c a t i o n s t h a t have been 

16 submitted t o the State. Fresh water does e x i s t i n the area 

17 down to approximately 150 f e e t . And g e o l o g i c a l l y there's no 

18 known f a u l t s or h y d r o l o g i c a l connections t o the f r e s h water 

19 from anything below the f r e s h water zones i n t h a t area. These 

20 are your t y p i c a l casings t o p r o t e c t the f r e s h water. 

21 This i s the Geronimo 27, which i s proposed. This i s 

22 the Geronimo 28, which i s approved. And t h i s i s the 

23 Geronimo 33, which i s a gas production w e l l . A l l of these 

24 we l l s have surface casing down t o 440 t o 520 f e e t . And the 

25 cement i s c i r c u l a t e d t o surface. So f r e s h water i s very w e l l 
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1 p r o t e c t e d t h e r e . 

2 They then run a short s t r i n g down approximately 

3 2700 f e e t . And they c i r c u l a t e a l l the way back t o surface on 

4 t h a t short s t r i n g t o p r o t e c t f r e s h water, and obviously t o 

5 p r o t e c t the hydrocarbon zones as w e l l . But the f r e s h water i s 

6 very w e l l p r o t e c t e d . 

7 Q. (By Mr. Bruce): So by i n j e c t i n g i n t o the 

8 Geronimo 27 there wouldn't be any movement of f l u i d between 

9 zones? 

10 A. No, we do not b e l i e v e t h i s . This i s t y p i c a l 

11 p r o t e c t i o n of hydrocarbons. This i s the proposed 27 w e l l . You 

12 have hydrocarbon zones down t o at l e a s t -- we're down t o the 

13 Abo. Here you have short s t r i n g . Normally t h a t ' s run t o the 

14 production zone a l l the way t o the Penn, and i t has cement 

15 normally t h a t goes up i n t o the short s t r i n g of at l e a s t 

16 500 f e e t so a l l the shallow zones and the zones down t o our 

17 i n j e c t i o n zone are p r o t e c t e d by cement. So we f e e l t h a t t h i s 

18 p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , which i s one of the th i n g s we look f o r very 

19 much, i s t o make sure t h a t where we i n j e c t , we w i l l not 

20 contaminate f r e s h water or i n t e r f e r e w i t h any hydrocarbons. 

21 Now, I ' d l i k e t o address the zones t h a t I have, and 

22 t h i s i s S l i d e No. 14. Our i n j e c t i o n zone s t a r t s at 7782, which 

23 i s r i g h t here, and goes down much deeper a l l the way to 8300 

24 f e e t . This i s the mud log on the Geronimo 27, the proposed 

25 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l . Dominion had some gas shows i n t h i s 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
83223910-c5b2-478f-95fb-ce3bb828dab3 



Page 31 
1 area r i g h t here. Dominion came i n and p e r f o r a t e d t h i s i n t e r v a l J 

2 at 7860 or 7898. We have no r e s u l t s of t h a t from the records. 

3 But they abandoned t h a t , went up hole and completed i n the 

4 Wolfcamp at 7168 t o 7180. This i m p l i e s t h a t there was no 

5 commercial p r o d u c t i o n w i t h i n t h a t zone. This i s a l a r g e r l o g 

6 of the e n t i r e i n j e c t i o n zone. 

7 MR. EZEANYIM: Let's go back t o t h a t s l i d e . 

8 THE WITNESS: Sure. Abso l u t e l y . 

9 MR. EZEANYIM: The 7782 t o 8300 i s the Dominion t e s t , 

10 there i s no production? 

11 THE WITNESS: No r e s u l t s were reported i n the 

12 records. I only have access t o p u b l i c records, and they d i d 

13 not -- there was nothing t h a t I was able t o f i n d . 

14 MR. EZEANYIM: That doesn't mean they don't have any 

15 p r o d u c t i o n . 

16 THE WITNESS: Right. No. And I'm not implying t h a t . 

17 I sa i d I have no r e s u l t s . But they l e f t t h a t zone and went up 

18 the hole and re-completed up higher. 

19 MR. EZEANYIM: Up hole there? 

20 THE WITNESS: Oh, they completed i t . Yeah, they 

21 completed the Wolfcamp at 7168, which i s about 600 f e e t higher. 

22 So we f e e l l i k e they — they t e s t e d a whole l o t of zones i n 

23 t h i s w e l l before they a c t u a l l y got t o abandon i t . 

24 Q. (By Mr. Bruce): Was there much production from 

25 the upper Wolfcamp? 
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1 A. I can't remember. I can't remember. But i t was 

2 commercial f o r some time, but I don't remember. 

3 MR. EZEANYIM: Yeah. Go ahead. 

4 MR. CAMPANELLA: They d i d not produce from the upper 

5 zone. They t e s t e d i t and then they shut i t i n because i t was 

6 not commercial. 

7 MR. EZEANYIM: Which zone are you t a l k i n g about? 

8 MR. CAMPANELLA: Dominion completed i t . 

9 THE WITNESS: I apologize. 

10 MR. EZEANYIM: Which zone i s that ? 

11 MR. CAMPANELLA: That would be the upper Wolfcamp. 

12 THE WITNESS: 7168 t o 7180? 

13 MR. CAMPANELLA: That was the l a s t p e r f o r a t i o n t h a t 

14 they perfed t h a t w e l l a t , 7160 t o 7180, and they d i d n ' t produce 

15 i t . They abandoned t h a t l o c a t i o n . Well, they a c t u a l l y sat on 

16 i t f o r three years and then abandoned the w e l l . 

17 MR. EZEANYIM: I s there anything on the record t o 

18 show t h a t t h a t i s a f a c t t h a t you are s t a t i n g ? 

19 THE WITNESS: I could probably f i n d something very 

20 r a p i d l y . I've gone through a whole l o t of we l l s here, but I 

21 w i l l check t h a t a t the end of t h i s p r e s e n t a t i o n . I ' l l have i t 

22 on f i l e on my computer here. 

23 MR. BRUCE: And t h a t data was — I d i d look at i t , 

24 and t h a t data was i n the D i v i s i o n ' s w e l l f i l e s , as f a r as 

25 completion and subsequent abandonment. 
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1 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. 

2 THE WITNESS: Well, I can v e r i f y t h a t very r a p i d l y . 

3 And I do apologize f o r t h a t . 

4 The next one i s a dual l a t e r a l l o g of the Geronimo 
5 27. The i n t e r v a l again being 7782 down t o 8300. This i s the 

6 i n t e r v a l t h a t was t e s t e d i n the proposed i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l by 

7 Dominion and i t was the best l o o k i n g i n t e r v a l w i t h i n t h i s 

8 s e c t i o n from a l o g i n t e r p r e t a t i o n and from the mud l o g . 

9 Q. (By Mr. Bruce): Now, Mr. Welch, you've got a few 

10 s l i d e s t h a t deal w i t h c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . And i n Marbob's 

11 pre-hearing statement, they r a i s e d the issue of c o r r e l a t i v e 

12 r i g h t s , d i d they not? 

13 A. They said t h a t a re-completion w i t h i n the 

14 Geronimo 27 t h a t there may be some -- they d i d n ' t say -- they 

15 say i t may impact c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . I'm not here t o say 

16 whether there i s or not, because I don't know the d i f f e r e n t 

17 i n t e r e s t owners and a l l t h e i r l i t t l e s u b d i v i s i o n s . And there's 

18 so much production out there, I can't s t a t e f o r the record 

19 whether there i s or not. 

20 I can address what would be associated w i t h 

21 c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s from a t e c h n i c a l standpoint, and t h a t ' s a l l 

22 I wanted to do here today i s t o discuss c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s i n 

23 the Glorieta-Yeso Formation as i t would occur t e c h n i c a l l y from 

24 the perspective of the Geronimo 27. 

25 As b a s i c a l l y -- I see no apparent issues i n Unit M, 
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1 Section 27 t h a t would r e q u i r e Geronimo 27 t o be completed 

2 shallow, from a c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s issue. Location M-27 may 

3 have Glorieta-Yeso o f f s e t p roduction c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s issues 

4 along the west l i n e and the south l i n e . Geronimo 27 i s not a 

5 t e c h n i c a l s o l u t i o n t o Glorieta-Yeso c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , due t o 

6 the distance from the o f f s e t drainage w e l l s at the lease l i n e . 

7 Lease M-27 requires w e l l s from 330 f e e t from the 

8 south l i n e t o p r o t e c t drainage from o f f s e t Marbob w e l l , A State 

9 No. 2, i n Unit D, Section 34, 17 South, 28 East. And 330 f e e t 

10 from the west l i n e drainage from Marbob's Hanover No. 3, 

11 Unit P, Section 28, 17 South, 28 East. 

12 Q. Before we get i n t o t h a t --

13 MR. EZEANYIM: Don't go on y e t . I want t o ask 

14 questions. Go back there. Number one, you sa i d you can't 

15 complete on 27 shallow because there's nothing t h e r e ; i s t h a t 

16 what you're saying? 

17 THE WITNESS: No. You can complete i t , but i t 

18 doesn't have anything t o do w i t h -- there's no r e l a t i v e deed t o 

19 c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s from drainage. 

20 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. 

21 THE WITNESS: This w e l l i s too f a r away from any 

22 other w e l l s t h a t are i n competition w i t h drainage o f f of t h i s 

23 10-acre s e c t i o n , which I'm going t o demonstrate. 

24 MR. EZEANYIM: And then e x p l a i n the second l i n e 

25 t h e r e . What do you mean by that? 
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1 THE WITNESS: Okay. Here, again, i t ' s the f a c t t h a t 

2 the 27, where i t ' s l o c a t e d -- I t h i n k I covered t h i s much 

3 b e t t e r -- I'm going t o show you a map and show you where the 

4 we l l s are l o c a t e d . I t h i n k i t w i l l be much c l e a r e r . 

5 MR. EZEANYIM: Yeah. I f you would. But, I want t o 

6 t a l k about the Geronimo No. 27 North, a t e c h n i c a l s o l u t i o n . 

7 What do you mean by that? 

8 THE WITNESS: Because, t o p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , 
9 you have t o be i n the same drainage area. That's where you 

10 have a w e l l d r a i n i n g another acreage, o f f s e t t i n g acreage. And 

11 i f you completed the 26 i n the Yeso-Glorieta, i t wouldn't be 

12 p r o t e c t i n g drainage o f f of i t s acreage. Because the other w e l l 

13 i s l o c a t e d very near the lease l i n e where t h i s i s f a r away. So 

14 t e c h n i c a l l y i t ' s not going t o be a drainage issue. 

15 Q. (By Mr. Bruce): And Mr. Welch, j u s t f o r the 

16 record, I b e l i e v e the footage l o c a t i o n of the proposed 

17 i n j e c t i o n w e l l i s 990 from the south l i n e --

18 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

19 Q. -- and 660 from the west l i n e ? 

20 A. And o f f s e t drainage i n the Yeso -- and the o f f s e t 

21 acreage i s 330 f e e t from the lease l i n e , not 990 f e e t from the 

22 lease l i n e . So i t could not p r o t e c t drainage o f f of t h i s 

23 lease. I f there i s a c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s issue, which I cannot 

24 s t a t e because I don't know who a l l has an i n t e r e s t i n the 

25 leases. 
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1 This i s shallow p r o d u c t i o n t h a t b a s i c a l l y j u s t shows 

2 Marbob we l l s i n red. 

3 Q. So i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r s e c t i o n , 

4 where the blue i s the proposed s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l --

5 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

6 Q. — Marbob already has four Grayburg-San Andres 

7 wells? 

8 A. Three Grayburg-San Andres w e l l s and t h i s w e l l up 

9 here i s at Seven-Rivers. 

10 Q. Seven-Rivers? 

11 A. Yeah. Yates Seven-Rivers. 

12 Q. Okay. 

13 A. And I've got a map showing -- here's the 

14 Glorieta-Yeso prod u c t i o n i n t h i s area. This i s b a s i c a l l y a 

15 r e l a t i v e l y new pro d u c t i o n horizon. I t h i n k the f i r s t w e l l 

16 d r i l l e d was over here, and I t h i n k i t was i n 2005. 

17 Q. And t h a t i s i n Section 27? 

18 A. Right. And i t says No. 3, t h a t ' s i n MNOP. 

19 That's i n P. 

20 Q. Unit O. 

21 A. Yeah. Unit P, Section 27. Marbob d r i l l e d three 

22 Glorieta-Yeso wells o f f s e t t i n g Unit M i n Section 27. The f i r s t 

23 w e l l , I b e l i e v e they d r i l l e d , was a State No. 1, which was i n 

24 e a r l y -- or excuse me -- l a t e 2006. The w e l l has approval f o r 

25 commingling w i t h the Glorieta-Grayburg-San Andres. I found 
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1 nothing i n the record t o say whether i t was commingled or not 

2 or completed i n the Grayburg, but I do know t h a t i t ' s completed 

3 i n the Yeso from the records. The State No. 2 produces from 

4 the Yeso. 

5 Q. And t h a t ' s 330 feet? 

6 A. That's 330 f e e t . I have a diagram on the next 

7 map t o i l l u s t r a t e the distances. And then you have the Hanover 

8 No. 3, which was completed about mid-2007. 

9 The proposed s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l i s mis-numbered 

10 here. I t ' s 27 -- I do apologize. This l o c a t i o n f o r the State 

11 No. 2 i s 330 f e e t south of U n i t M, Section 27, and t h a t ' s at 

12 t h a t State No. 2 i n Unit D of Section 34. 

13 The Hanover No. 3 i s 330 f e e t -- excuse me -- I s a i d 

14 meters. I work o f f of meters -- 330 f e e t from the east l i n e 

15 and i t ' s l o c a ted i n Section 28, and there's 330 -- t o p r o t e c t 

16 c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s i f there i s an issue between drainage from 

17 t h i s acreage t o t h i s acreage or from t h i s acreage t o t h i s 

18 acreage, i t would have t o be d r i l l e d a t 330 from the lease l i n e 

19 t o be equiv a l e n t t o p r o t e c t drainage o f f of t h i s lease l i n e . 

20 Q. And so what you're saying i s t h a t the s a l t w a t e r 

21 disposal w e l l i s not w e l l l o c a t e d t o p r o t e c t against drainage? 

22 A. I t ' s 990 f e e t . I f we completed t h i s w e l l , i t 

23 would not p r o t e c t drainage o f f of t h i s lease down here from a 

24 c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s standpoint. 

25 Q. Now, one other t h i n g on t h i s p l a t , you mentioned 
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1 the three -- on t h i s p l a t , they're blue, the three Grayburg-San | 

2 Andres wells? j 

3 A. Right. j 

4 Q. Just from a r e s e r v o i r standpoint, do you see a I 
5 need f o r a f o u r t h Grayburg-San Andres w e l l i n t h a t small 

6 p o r t i o n of the q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r section? 

7 A. No, I don't. I t h i n k the Grayburg-San Andres i s 

8 p r e t t y w e l l covered r i g h t here. 

9 Q. And so j u s t from a c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s standpoint, 

10 t h i s w e l l i s i l l - s u i t e d t o p r o t e c t the southwest 

11 quarter/southwest quarter from any o f f s e t drainage? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. Okay. 

14 A. This i s my l a s t s l i d e , 21. Judah O i l 

15 r e s p e c t f u l l y requests the OCD t o grant the Geronimo No. 27 

16 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l a p p l i c a t i o n . The proposed Judah O i l 

17 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l : One, p r o t e c t s surface f r e s h water; 

18 two, p r o t e c t s any p o t e n t i a l shallow hydrocarbon zones w i t h 

19 cement casing; t h r e e , has no apparent commercial o i l or gas 

20 reserves i n the proposed i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l . P o t e n t i a l 

21 i n t e r v a l s of i n t e r e s t were t e s t e d and/or produced by Dominion 

22 p r i o r t o abandonment. 

23 The proposed w e l l does not i n t e r f e r e w i t h any c u r r e n t 

24 c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s issues. The w e l l has the same i n j e c t i o n 

25 i n t e r v a l s as other s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l s i n the area. The 
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1 w e l l w i l l provide a desired service t o l o c a l o i l and gas 

2 operators and se r v i c e companies. The proposed w e l l w i l l 

3 provide s t a t e income from the estimated 4,000 t o 8,000 b a r r e l s 

4 of water a day t h a t i t w i l l produce. The s a l t w a t e r disposal 

5 w e l l does not impede Marbob from development of i t s mineral 

6 r i g h t s or impede income t o the State of New Mexico. 

7 Q. Mr. Welch, i n preparing f o r t h i s hearing, d i d you 

8 review the data i n the form C-108, the i n j e c t i o n a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

9 A. Yes, s i r . 

10 Q. And the data was in c l u d e d i n t h a t a p p l i c a t i o n , 

11 c o r r e c t ? 

12 A. To the best of my knowledge. I n o t i c e one 

13 observation t h a t there's some d i f f e r e n c e s i n tops on some of 

14 the formations between the w e l l diagram and the -- but t h a t was 

15 i t . But i t d i d n ' t r e a l l y have any concern r e l a t i v e t o the 

16 i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l . 

17 Q. And again, the w e l l s are p r o p e r l y -- the 

18 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l w i l l be completed p r o p e r l y so i t won't 

19 a f f e c t any other zone? 

20 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. And of the we l l s i n the area of review which 

22 penetrate the i n j e c t i o n zone, they are p r o p e r l y d r i l l e d and 

23 completed or plugged and abandoned so t h a t there w i l l be no 

24 movement of f l u i d between zones from those wells? 

25 A. Yes, s i r . 
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Q. And i s the i n j e c t i o n water compatible w i t h the 

2 sal t w a t e r i n the i n j e c t i o n zone? 

3 A. Yes, s i r . 

4 Q. I n your op i n i o n , i s the g r a n t i n g of Judah O i l ' s 

5 a p p l i c a t i o n i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation and the prevention 

6 of waste? 

7 

8 

A. Yes, s i r . I believe i t i s . 

Q. And was E x h i b i t 7 prepared by you? 

9 A. Yes, s i r , i t was. 

10 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I move the admission of 

11 Judah O i l E x h i b i t s 2 and 7. 

12 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

13 MR. EZEANYIM: E x h i b i t s 2 and 7 w i l l be admitted. 

14 [A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t s 2 and 7 admitted i n t o 

15 evidence. ] 

16 MR. EZEANYIM: Ms. Munds? 

17 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

18 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

19 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

20 Q. Mr. Welch, j u s t a few questions. I bel i e v e on 

21 Page 8 of your p r e s e n t a t i o n you noted there were three 

22 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l s i n the area. 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. I assume those are a l l p r i v a t e s a l t w a t e r 

25 disposals , they're not commercial? 
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Yes . 

2 Q- And then you were present f o r Mr. Campanella's 

3 testimony? 

4 A. Yes . 

5 Q- He mentioned, I b e l i e v e , t h a t t here was another 

6 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l three miles away. 

7 A. Yes . 

8 Q. And do you know i f t h a t ' s commercial? 

9 A. I don't know f o r myself, no. 

10 Q. Okay. 

11 A. Sorry. 

12 Q. That's okay. Let's see. I b e l i e v e i t ' s Page 14 

13 and 15 of your p r e s e n t a t i o n . They are the logs from Dominion. 

14 A. Yes. My l o g and the l a t e r a l l o g . 

15 Q. Do these logs come from OCD records? 

16 A. Yes . 

17 Q. And d i d you request any other logs from Dominion 

18 t o determine i f there were any productive zones? 

19 A. I also have Denson Newtong logs. 

20 Q. And d i d t h a t show any productive zones? 

21 A. No d i f f e r e n t than what -- t o me, the best l o g was 

22 the dual l a t e r l o g . But more s p e c i f i c a l l y , the mud l o g i s the 

23 one I would look at the very most because i t d i d have the gas 

24 show. 

25 Q. Okay. Mr. Welsh, I ' d l i k e t o t u r n , then, t o your 
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1 Page 16 and some of the pages a f t e r t h a t . I j u s t want t o make j 

2 sure I understand some of your b u l l e t p o i n t s . And Mr. Ezeanyim < 

3 asked some of the questions. I would j u s t l i k e t o make sure I 

4 understand a l l of what you were saying. j 

5 I f I understand you c o r r e c t l y , you're saying t h a t ; 

6 this well is not positioned to protect against any drainage of ] 

7 the other o f f s e t w e l l s . 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the d e f i n i t i o n of 

10 c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s i n the D i v i s i o n rules? | 
11 A. I have not read them f o r the State of New Mexico. 

12 Q. Okay. Would you b e l i e v e me i f I said i t was an 

13 o p p o r t u n i t y t o develop and produce your f a i r share of o i l and 

14 gas? 

15 A. I would probably say you're probably c o r r e c t , but 

16 I don't know. C o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s --

17 Q. I t ' s a l e g a l term; i s t h a t f a i r t o say? 

18 A. And -- and i f I misused i t here, I do apologize. 

19 But no, I d i d not check t h a t . 

20 Q. Okay. I f t h i s w e l l was converted i n t o a 

21 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l , i t wouldn't have the o p p o r t u n i t y t o 

22 develop any of the o i l and gas t h a t may be i n there. 

23 A. Well, i t would a f t e r we completed i t as a 

24 s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l . A l l of the zones above would s t i l l 

25 exist and be protected and available from that well bore. i 
i 
% 

I 
i 
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1 Q. How long do you expect the w e l l t o be used as a 

2 s a l t w a t e r disposal? 

3 A. Well, l i k e we used i n our c a l c u l a t i o n , we would 

4 hope t h a t i t would be v a l i d f o r 10 years. But we don't know 

5 t h a t i t ' s going t o be one year t o 20 years. 

6 Q. Sure. Okay. You are l o o k i n g at your maps. And 

7 I guess we could t u r n t o them. I guess we could s t a r t w i t h 

8 Page 18 or 19. E i t h e r of them i s probably f i n e . 

9 Did you look and see how any of Marbob wells -- the 

10 areas t h a t they have drained? 

11 A. They are not very b i g w e l l s . They are completed 

12 over l a r g e s e c t i o n s . I have the p r o d u c t i o n graphs, i f you want 

13 t o look at them. 

14 Q. But you looked at t h e i r p r o d u c t i o n h i s t o r y ? 

15 A. Yes. I have them as backup s l i d e s i f you want t o 

16 look a t them. 

17 Q. Did you perform any drainage area c a l c u l a t i o n s ? 

18 A. No, I d i d n ' t . But the l i m i t e d volume of 

19 produc t i o n , which i s q u i t e low --

20 Q. Okay. 

21 A. -- probably less than -- on average, less than 

22 10,000 b a r r e l s . 

23 Q. For each well? 

24 A. Yeah. 

25 Q. And you are approximating t h a t ? 
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1 A. I am approximating t h a t . 

2 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Okay. I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l the 

3 questions I have. Thank you. 

4 MR. EZEANYIM: Any others, Mr. Brooks? 

5 MR. BROOKS: I don't b e l i e v e so, no. 

6 EXAMINATION 

7 BY MR. WARNELL: 

8 Q. A couple of questions, I guess. I'm curious. Do 

9 we know when t h i s w e l l was o r i g i n a l l y d r i l l e d ? 

10 A. When the wells were o r i g i n a l l y d r i l l e d ? 

11 Q. The 27? 

12 A. The 27 was d r i l l e d i n 2001. 

13 Q. So i t ' s a new well? 

14 A. I t ' s a new w e l l , yes. 

15 Q. And according t o records, I b e l i e v e , there's no 

16 known p r o d u c t i o n on t h i s well? 

17 A. No. I t produced the Penn. I t produced gas f o r 

18 q u i t e a number of years. 

19 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I t h i n k Mr. Campanella i s 

20 more f a m i l i a r . And I do have a sheet, but I only have one copy 

21 t h a t I can submit t o everybody l a t e r . Mr. Campanella does know 

22 the h i s t o r y of t h a t w e l l i n more d e t a i l . 

23 MR. EZEANYIM: So your testimony, Mr. Campanella, i s 

24 t h a t there has been no production from t h a t No. 27? 

25 MR. CAMPANELLA: There has been no produc t i o n . They 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
83223910-c5b2-478f-95fb-ce3bb828dab3 



Page 45 

1 t e s t e d the zones. They d i d n ' t produce any of those zones. 

2 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. And so i t shows i t then. Go 

3 ahead. 

4 MR. WARNELL: That's what I was t h i n k i n g . I n 

5 p r e p a r a t i o n f o r t h i s hearing, I looked the other day at the OCD 

6 f i l e s and I couldn't f i n d any pro d u c t i o n , any report e d 

7 produ c t i o n . 

8 MR. CAMPANELLA: They a c t u a l l y show i t as the l a s t 

9 t h a t they -- the l a s t zone they came t o , they showed i t as 

10 e v a l u a t i n g . That's the l a s t record they have. Then they 

11 plugged i t . 

12 MR. EZEANYIM: So e s s e n t i a l l y , the w e l l i s a dry hole 

13 i n a l l zones? 

14 MR. CAMPANELLA: That i s c o r r e c t . 

15 MR. BROOKS: I bel i e v e I do have one question, 

16 Mr. Examiner. 

17 MR. EZEANYIM: Go ahead. 

18 EXAMINATION 

19 BY MR. BROOKS: 

20 Q. On t h i s Glorieta-Yeso map, a l l of these other 

21 w e l l s t h a t are shown i n Unit M are t o -- are producing, i t 

22 looks l i k e , from shale or horizons, other than the 

23 Glorieta-Yeso. 

24 A. Yes, s i r . 

25 Q. Do you know i f any of those w e l l s were d r i l l e d 
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1 down t o the Glorieta-Yeso or through the Glorieta-Yeso? 

2 A. Yes, s i r , I do. They were not -- the deepest 

3 w e l l was the TJ State No. 2, which i s t h i s w e l l r i g h t here. I t 

4 was d r i l l e d t o 2000 f e e t w i t h 5 1/2 inch casing set. 

5 Q. So --

6 A. And the Glorieta-Yeso i s approximately 3500 t o 

7 4,000 f e e t . 

8 Q. So there's no other w e l l s t h a t penetrate the 

9 Glorieta-Yeso i n Unit M other than the --

10 A. Not t o my knowledge. 

11 Q. — No. 27? 

12 A. Yes, s i r . 

13 Q. Okay. Thank you. 

14 EXAMINATION 

15 BY MR. EZEANYIM: 

16 Q. Mr. Welch, how many we l l s do you have i n the area 

17 of review i n your C-108? 

18 A. How many w e l l s i n t h i s area? 

19 Q. I n the area of review of t h i s i n j e c t i o n w e l l . Do 

20 you know how many w e l l s are i n the area of review? 

21 A. Well, the number of -- there's approximately four 

22 or f i v e every 10 acres. There's about 60 or 70 we l l s t o t a l i n 

23 the area. 

24 Q. 60 or 70? I'm t a l k i n g about w i t h i n the h a l f - m i l e 

25 area of review. 
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Yes . 

How many? 

This i s the h a l f m i l e radius r i g h t here. 

Yeah. How many w e l l s are i n there? 

There's probably f o u r times -- about 50 or 60 

1 A 

2 Q 

3 A 

4 Q 

5 A 

6 w e l l s . 

7 Q. Okay. Did you look a t them before you submitted 

8 your C-108? 

9 A. I p u l l e d up t h e i r p r o d u c t i o n data t o see which 

10 zones which w e l l s produced out o f . I d i d n ' t look at a l l the 

11 w e l l data i t s e l f . 

12 Q. Okay. You d i d n ' t look at a l l the wells? 

13 A. I d i d n ' t look at a l l the w e l l s . I looked at 

14 where they produced. 

15 Q. Are there any w e l l s t h a t are plugged and 

16 abandoned i n t h a t h a l f mile area of review? Are there any 

17 we l l s plugged and abandoned? 

18 A. I t h i n k most of the black dots on here are we l l s 

19 t h a t are -- they e i t h e r aren't producing -- they may be 

2 0 abandoned or they may be t e m p o r a r i l y abandoned. But I d i d n ' t 

21 look at each w e l l bore. 

22 Q. Okay. You know, before we can approve t h a t 

23 i n j e c t i o n t o the w e l l , you need t o look at those areas of 

24 review. I f a w e l l i s plugged and abandoned, you have t o make 

25 sure i t ' s p r o p e r l y plugged and abandoned so t h a t you can i n j e c t 
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i n j e c t i o n w e l l so t h a t i t doesn't provide a conduit, 

2 you know, to contaminate f r e s h water. 

3 A. Right. Well, I'm very comfortable t h a t No. 27 

4 wouldn't be a conduit t o the f r e s h water. 

5 Q. Yeah. That's the i n j e c t i o n w e l l . I'm t a l k i n g 

6 about the area of review w e l l s . 

7 

8 

A. I don't have any c o n t r o l over these w e l l s . 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, there's only two w e l l s . 

9 There are no plugged and abandoned which penetrate the 

10 i n j e c t i o n zone . 

11 MR. EZEANYIM: There are none? 

12 MR. BRUCE: There are none. The only two we l l s t h a t 

13 penetrate the i n j e c t i o n zone, other than the proposed s a l t w a t e r 

14 dis p o s a l w e l l , are the Edge Petroleum s a l t w a t e r disposal w e l l 

15 and then the Geronimo -- what i s t h a t called? 

16 THE WITNESS: Geronimo 33. 

17 MR. BRUCE: -- 33 which i s a producing deep gas 

18 w e l l . 

19 Q. (By Mr. Ezeanyim): So a c t u a l l y , the 50 we l l s 

20 mentionec , only two we l l s penetrate the i n j e c t i o n zone? 

21 A. That's a l l the -- those are a l l the shallow 

22 w e l l s . 

23 Q. Okay. The other ones are shallow w e l l s , yeah. 

24 See, I 'm t r y i n g t o get some i n f o r m a t i o n . 

25 MR. BRUCE: They're probably above 1500 f e e t , 
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1 b a s i c a l l y . 

2 MR. EZEANYIM: For i n j e c t i o n wells? I mean f o r the 

3 i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l ? 

4 MR. BRUCE: The plugged and abandoned we l l s were 

5 probably d r i l l e d less than 1500 f e e t deep. 

6 Q. (By Mr. Ezeanyim): Okay. Good. And then do you 

7 do any water a n a l y s i s of --

8 A. No, s i r . 

9 Q. And the reason being? 

10 A. I t was i n the a p p l i c a t i o n . 

11 Q. Yeah. 

12 A. And I pers o n a l l y d i d n ' t do any water a n a l y s i s . 

13 Q. Who d i d the a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

14 A. The sa l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l a p p l i c a t i o n has a water 

15 an a l y s i s i n i t . 

16 MR. BRUCE: I t ' s attachment D, D as i n dog, t o the 
17 a p p l i c a t i o n . 

18 MR. EZEANYIM: A l l the i n f o r m a t i o n I need on water | 

19 ana l y s i s i s i n t h a t D, r i g h t ? 

20 MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . But i f there i s something you 

21 need, please l e t us know and we can supplement. 

22 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. I understand. Ms. Munds, do 

23 you have anymore questions? 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I do have one more question, j 

25 Mr. Welch. Do you happen t o know when t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n was f 
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1 submitted? 

2 THE WITNESS: I'd have t o check my notes. 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That's a l l r i g h t . I t h i n k 

4 Mr. Campanella gave us an estimate. That's close enough. 

5 Thank you. That's a l l I have, Mr. Ezeanyim. 

6 FURTHER EXAMINATION 

7 BY MR. BROOKS: 

8 Q. One more question occurred t o me. I'm so r r y . 

9 I'm not t h i n k i n g very q u i c k l y t h i s morning. 

10 Looking at your maps, Pages 18, 19, and 20, you have 

11 on here "Judah O i l , Geronimo 33 proposed s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l . " 

12 Now, i s t h a t wrong? I s t h a t a c t u a l l y the 27? 

13 A. Right. 

14 Q. Okay. Where i s the Geronimo 33 Well, the 

15 producing gas w e l l t h a t you r e f e r r e d to? 

16 A. I t ' s r i g h t here. 

17 Q. Here being? 

18 A. I n Section 33. 

19 Q. Section 33. Well, where you've got the p o i n t e r 

20 i s Section 32; i s i t not? 

21 A. No. This i s Section 34, t h i s i s Section 33, 

22 t h a t ' s the Geronimo 33 Well. 

23 Q. I'm confused here. Okay. I don't have a map. 

24 What's got me confused i s the No. 33 appears on the map on 

25 Page 18. 
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Yeah, i t does. And t h a t ' s Section 34. 

2 Q. Okay. So t h a t should be 34. There are se v e r a l 

3 e r r o r s on these maps? 

4 A. Yes, t h e r e are. I apologize. 

5 Q. So the Geronimo 33 i s i n Un i t A of Section 33, 

6 which i s o f f of the southwest corner of Un i t M of 27? 

7 

8 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, s i r . 

Okay. Thank you. 

9 A. I apologize. I must be g e t t i n g o l d . 

10 MR . BROOKS: That's a l l I have. 

11 MR . EZEANYIM: Okay. You may be excused. 

12 MR . BRUCE: I have n o t h i n g f u r t h e r i n t h i s m atter. 

13 MR . EZEANYIM: Ms. Munds, c a l l your witness. 

14 MS . MUNDS-DRY: I ' d l i k e t o c a l l Ray M i l l e r . 

15 RAY PAUL MILLER 

16 a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

17 was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

18 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

19 BY MS. MUNDS -DRY: 

20 Q- W i l l you please s t a t e your name f o r the record? 

21 A. My name i s Ray Paul M i l l e r . 

22 Q. Where do you reside? 

23 A. A r t e s i a , New Mexico. 

24 Q. And by whom are you employed? 

25 A. Marbob Energy Corporation. 
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1 Q. And how are you employed w i t h Marbob? 

2 A. They pay me a s a l a r y . 

3 Q. What do you do f o r Marbob? 

4 A. I guess my o f f i c i a l t i t l e i s s e c r e t a r y - t r e a s u r e r . 

5 I'm at t o r n e y i n f a c t f o r the c o r p o r a t i o n . I'm a board of 

6 d i r e c t o r , and I also stock the Diet Cokes i n the r e f r i g e r a t o r . 

7 Q. Most important. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d 

8 before the Di v i s i o n ? 

9 A. Yes, I have. 

10 Q. And were your c r e d e n t i a l s as a p r a c t i c a l o i l man 

11 accepted and made a matter of record? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d 

14 by Judah i n t h i s case? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the stat u s of the lands 

17 i n the subject area? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We would tender Mr. M i l l e r as an 

20 expert witness i n p r a c t i c a l o i l matters. 

21 MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

22 MR. EZEANYIM: Mr. M i l l e r i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

23 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry): Mr. M i l l e r , would you 

24 summarize why Marbob i s o b j e c t i n g t o t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

25 A. B a s i c a l l y , we b e l i e v e t h a t there could be undue 
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1 waste from productive formations under and around t h i s t r a c t . 

2 And t r u l y , what we're a f t e r i s the loss of Marbob's r i g h t s t o 

3 i t s p r o p e r t y and to develop i t s o i l and gas lease. 

4 I t winds up being a t h i n g where probably the easiest 

5 way t o s t a r t o f f i n t h i s deal -- I'm beginning t o show my 

6 age -- but i t would probably be best i f I gave you a l i t t l e b i t 

7 of h i s t o r y as t o where p a r t of our o b j e c t i o n arose from. 

8 I n 1980, Marbob owned the west A r t e s i a Grayburg U n i t . 

9 I t ' s a shallow u n i t i n Section 8 of 1828, j u s t south of --

10 southwest of t h i s p r o p e r t y a few m i l e s . And Marbob had 

11 acquired the o l d u n i t from Mountain States Petroleum c a l l e d 

12 Slayton. One of the f i r s t p r o j e c t s t h a t we a c t u a l l y d i d on 

13 t h a t u n i t was we re-entered a deep dry hole t h a t had been 

14 d r i l l e d by Aminoil O i l Company and we completed the w e l l i n s i d e 

15 the intermediate casing s t r i n g and the r i g h t s t h a t we owned. 

16 We owned r i g h t s from surface, I b e l i e v e , from 2500 f e e t . And 

17 the u n i t i n t e r v a l was i n those r i g h t s . We re-completed t h i s 

18 w e l l or re-entered the w e l l and completed the w e l l i n the u n i t 

19 r i g h t s and the depths t h a t we owned. 

20 The w e l l was frac'ed, put on production, and was a 

21 producer. A few months l a t e r , we were contacted -- or I was 

22 contacted -- by an Aminoil O i l Company landman, and he 

23 b a s i c a l l y explained t o me t h a t we had re-entered t h e i r w e l l and 

24 t h a t we needed t o e i t h e r compensate them f o r use of the w e l l 

25 bore or we needed t o plug the w e l l back t o o r i g i n a l c o n d i t i o n , 
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1 you know, as the other o p t i o n . 

2 I t o l d him t h a t I would check i n t o i t . I d i d n ' t 

3 b e l i e v e t h a t was c o r r e c t , and I would get back t o him. I 

4 immediately went down t o our att o r n e y ' s o f f i c e , Losie & Carson 

5 at the time and v i s i t e d w i t h A.J. Losie, J e r r y Losie, who was 

6 our o i l and gas at t o r n e y . Mr. Losie, I b e l i e v e , p r a c t i c e d o i l 

7 and gas law there i n A r t e s i a from the middle '50s. About the 

8 time I was born, he was p r a c t i c i n g o i l and gas law. 

9 I explained t o him the Aminoil phone c a l l . I asked 

10 him about the f a c t t h a t I wanted t o t e l l them t o s t i c k i t , t h a t 

11 I f e l t t h a t we were w e l l w i t h i n our r i g h t s . He asked me some 

12 questions. He asked me who had d r i l l e d the w e l l . I explained 

13 t o him t h a t Aminoil had d r i l l e d the w e l l . He asked me i f 

14 Aminoil s t i l l owned any r i g h t s i n the deeper horizons. 

15 I explained t o him t h a t , yes, we only had shallow 

16 r i g h t s . I d i d be l i e v e t h a t they owned the deeper r i g h t s . And 

17 he explained t o me t h a t i t was a t h i n g where the f a c t t h a t they 

18 had d r i l l e d the w e l l , even though i t had been plugged, i f they 

19 r e t a i n e d r i g h t s , then i t was the law at t h a t p o i n t t h a t had 

20 been done i n New Mexico, and i t i n d i c a t e d t h a t I probably 

21 e i t h e r d i d need t o plug the w e l l or purchase the w e l l bore f o r 

22 our use. 

23 That wasn't what I wanted t o hear. I went back and 

24 b a s i c a l l y begged the Aminoil landman t o make a reasonable deal 

25 f o r the purchase of the w e l l bore, and we bought the w e l l bore 
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1 from A m i n o i l . Because at t h a t time, our w e l l was s t i l l h i g h l y 

2 economic and i t would have cost us a considerable amount of 

3 money t o go and d r i l l a new w e l l versus a c t u a l l y u t i l i z i n g t h a t 

4 e x i s t i n g w e l l . 

5 I t winds up being a t h i n g where t h a t ' s t r u l y the 

6 basis of why we objected t o t h i s . There has been a previous 

7 a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s area f o r a s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l i n 

8 Section 22 by SDX. I t was f o r the Oxy Malt-o-Meal State. You 

9 can review the records on t h a t . We objected t o t h a t d i s p o s a l 

10 w e l l a p p l i c a t i o n . I t was a s i m i l a r Wolfcamp-Cisco type of 

11 di s p o s a l w e l l type a p p l i c a t i o n f o r SDX. And again, our l o g i c 

12 was t h a t Oxy had d r i l l e d the w e l l . We had p a r t i c i p a t e d i n the 

13 d r i l l i n g w i t h Oxy. There were i n t e r v a l s t h a t s t i l l remained 

14 untested and were p o t e n t i a l l y p r o d u c t i v e , and t h a t ' s why we 

15 objected. When we explained i t t o SDX, they withdraw t h e i r 

16 a p p l i c a t i o n . 

17 But anyway, t h a t probably was a long way t o s t a r t o f f 

18 on e n t e r i n g a l l these e x h i b i t s and t a l k i n g about the 

19 a p p l i c a t i o n . 

20 MR. EZEANYIM: I t probably was, but the w e l l you 

21 t a l k e d about, was t h i s the 27 or another well? 

22 THE WITNESS: The Aminoil w e l l was a c t u a l l y a w e l l 

23 down i n Section 8 of 1828. 

24 MR. EZEANYIM: The w e l l you t a l k e d about, what w e l l 
25 i s that? 
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1 THE WITNESS: I t ' s the west A r t e s i a Grayburg No. 20. 

2 I t was o r i g i n a l l y d r i l l e d as the Aminoil State -- Aminoil 8 

3 State Com No. 1. I t has an API number of 30015, 23113. I t was 

4 o r i g i n a l l y d r i l l e d i n 1979. 

5 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. What are you t r y i n g t o i n d i c a t e 

6 w i t h t h a t w e l l? 

7 THE WITNESS: What I'm t r y i n g t o i n d i c a t e i s t h a t 

8 b a s i c a l l y , even though the f a c t the w e l l was plugged, t h a t I 

9 could not re - e n t e r t h a t w e l l even though I owned r i g h t s and 

10 a c t u a l l y completed the w e l l i n our r i g h t s . I mean, there's 

11 been testimony given t h a t Mr. Alvers says t h a t a plugged w e l l 

12 r e v e r t s t o the State. U n f o r t u n a t e l y -- I have great respect 

13 f o r Mr. Al v e r s , but I don't t h i n k he's an a t t o r n e y , and I don't 

14 be l i e v e t h a t he's c o r r e c t . 

15 I b e l i e v e when an o i l and gas lease expires and there 

16 are plugged w e l l s on the prope r t y , then those do r e v e r t t o the 

17 State. But the f a c t i s -- as you w i l l see i n the remainder of 

18 my testimony — b a s i c a l l y , we paid f o r our i n t e r e s t i n the 

19 d r i l l i n g of t h i s w e l l . We s t i l l own an a c t i v e o i l and gas 

20 lease. We b e l i e v e there are productive horizons t h a t can be 

21 re-completed i n t h i s w e l l , and t h a t was the basis of our 

22 o b j e c t i o n . 

23 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. Let me understand what you have 

2 4 said here: You said t h a t when a w e l l i s plugged and abandoned 

25 and the State s t i l l has ownership, i s t h a t -- who owns the w e l l 
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1 when the w e l l i s plugged and abandoned? Regardless of who 

2 owned i t when i t was i n production? 

3 MR. BROOKS: I was going t o ask Ms. Munds-Dry and 

4 Mr. Bruce i f they had b r i e f e d t h a t issue, i f they were prepared 

5 t o give us --

6 MR. BRUCE: I assumed we were going t o be asked t o do 

7 t h a t . 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I was t h i n k i n g the same t h i n g . 

9 MR. BROOKS: I have read cases on the ownership of 

10 downhole equipment. I don't know t h a t I've read a case on the 

11 ownership of a w e l l bore. So I would c e r t a i n l y love t o be 

12 educated. 

13 MS. MUNDS-DRY: And we would be happy t o b r i e f the 

14 issue f o r you, Mr. Ezeanyim. 

15 MR. BROOKS: Of course, the ownership i s not an issue 

16 the OCD has j u r i s d i c t i o n t o decide. I would be i n t e r e s t e d t o 

17 know i t because I t h i n k i t would help us guide our -- how we 

18 address the issues i n a case, i f we knew what the law was on 

19 t h a t s u b j e c t . 

20 But, of course, I assume what you're going t o be 

21 showing through your witnesses i s presumably by p u t t i n g t h i s 

22 w e l l t o use, the s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l , i t w i l l i n some way 

23 prevent prod u c t i o n which would have waste and c o r r e l a t i v e 

24 r i g h t s issues as opposed t o the ownership. I assume you're not 

25 asking the OCD t o make a conclusion about ownership. 
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1 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Correct. Mr. Bruce and I agreed. 

i 
2 Obviously, t h a t ' s not w i t h i n your j u r i s d i c t i o n t o determxne 

I 

3 ownership. However, we do t h i n k t h a t your j u r i s d i c t i o n i s 

4 invoked by lo o k i n g at the c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s and waste issues. 

5 MR. BROOKS: I agree w i t h t h a t . 

6 MS. MUNDS-DRY: And i f i t would help t o in f o r m your 

7 D i v i s i o n about t h a t , we would c e r t a i n l y be happy t o b r i e f i t . 
! 

8 MR. EZEANYIM: What I would l i k e t o hear i n t h i s case 

9 i s the l e g a l issues t h a t r e l a t e t o t h i s case. I don't want t o 

10 go i n t o d e t a i l . I f you go i n t o d e t a i l about ownership, I am 

11 not i n t e r e s t e d . Because we're not r e q u i r e d t o decide anything 

12 on ownership. But i f you have any l e g a l r a m i f i c a t i o n s , t h a t 

13 w i l l help us make a d e c i s i o n i n t h i s case. Well, we c e r t a i n l y 

14 want t o discuss t h a t . But I don't want t o get myself entangled 

15 i n who owns what or what, because I can't make a de c i s i o n on 

16 t h a t . I'm not going t o t r y t o make a d e c i s i o n on who owns 

17 what, you know. 

18 MR. BROOKS: With a l l due respect t o Mr. M i l l e r and 

19 Mr. Campanella and Mr. Al v e r s , I would be more i n t e r e s t e d i n 

20 what the courts have said about t h i s issue, than what any of 

21 them have said about i t . 

22 MS. MUNDS-DRY: And Mr. Ezeanyim, the only t h i n g I 

23 would say -- and I understand your p o s i t i o n the only t h i n g I 

24 would say i s t h a t we w i l l only t a l k about i t i n the context of 

25 why i t gives us standing t o be here o b j e c t i n g on the issue 
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1 today. 

2 MR. BROOKS: Okay. 

3 MR. EZEANYIM: And I would l i k e --

4 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Would t h a t be f a i r enough? 

5 MR. EZEANYIM: And I would l i k e us t o be b r i e f 

6 because we have a long day, and i f you s t a r t t e l l i n g me about 

7 ownership issues, I w i l l cut somebody o f f at t h a t p o i n t . I 

8 want you t o give us l e g a l on what you are o b j e c t i n g . That i s 

9 r e a l l y t o the p o i n t . Get r i g h t t o the p o i n t : Why are you 

10 o b j e c t i n g t o the use of t h i s w e l l f o r a SWD? That's why you're 

11 o b j e c t i n g . That's what we want t o hear. 

12 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Understood. And w e ' l l be e f f i c i e n t 

13 i n our question and answer p e r i o d . 

14 MR. EZEANYIM: Good. Go ahead. 

15 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry): Mr. M i l l e r , were you present 

16 f o r Mr. Campanella's testimony? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. And you heard him discuss the h i s t o r y of the 

19 C-108 a p p l i c a t i o n . I be l i e v e he said they submitted the f i r s t 

20 a p p l i c a t i o n i n January of 2008. Did Marbob ob j e c t t o t h a t 

21 a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

22 A. I bel i e v e , and OCD can v e r i f y i t t o Mr. Bruce and 

23 them, I be l i e v e Marbob has objected each time the a p p l i c a t i o n 

24 has been f i l e d . We d i d n ' t send you a copy of the o b j e c t i o n , 

25 but I b e l i e v e they can a c t u a l l y advise you t h a t i t was not only 
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1 RKI 02: others, but we objected each time the a p p l i c a t i o n was 

2 submitted. 

3 MR. EZEANYIM: Yeah. We d i d receive the o b j e c t i o n . 

4 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry): Okay. Mr. M i l l e r , l e t ' s 

5 t u r n t o what's been marked as Marbob E x h i b i t No. 1. W i l l you 

6 again review t h i s f o r the Examiner? 

7 A. I t j u s t b a s i c a l l y i s a State Land O f f i c e lease 

8 assignment which b a s i c a l l y shows t h a t Marbob was lessee of 

9 record on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r t r a c t covered i n the 

10 southwest/southwest of Section 27. 

11 Q. Okay. And does Marbob operate w e l l s under t h i s 

12 lease? 

13 A. Yes. There was previous testimony, I t h i n k , t h a t 

14 says t h a t the deepest w e l l d r i l l e d was the TJ State No. 1. I 

15 b e l i e v e , a c t u a l l y , the Elk State No. 1 i n the same 40-acre 

16 t r a c t was d r i l l e d t o a deeper depth, but i t again does not 

17 penetrate the Yeso formation. I t i s a San Andres producer. 

18 Q. A l l r i g h t . Mr. M i l l e r , would you t u r n t o what's 

19 been marked as E x h i b i t No. 2 and e x p l a i n t o the Examiner what 

20 t h i s i s ? 

21 A. E x h i b i t No. 2 i s b a s i c a l l y j u s t a copy of Louis 

22 Dreyfus N a t u r a l Gas which l a t e r became Dominion, the j o i n t 

23 operating agreement. I t b a s i c a l l y shows t h a t Marbob and P i t c h 

24 were both p a r t i e s t o t h i s model operating agreement, and we d i d 

25 j o i n i n the d r i l l i n g of the Geronimo 27 number -- or t h i s w e l l , 
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1 and we a c t u a l l y paid our share of the costs. 

2 Q. And what are you t r y i n g t o show w i t h t h i s 

3 agreement? 

4 A. B a s i c a l l y , j u s t t h a t we had ownership i n the 

5 w e l l . 

6 Q. Okay. Would you please t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. C, or 

7 No. 3? 

8 A. This i s b a s i c a l l y a smaller map than what he 

9 showed p r e v i o u s l y , and I also have h i g h l i g h t e d i t here. 

10 B a s i c a l l y , the red-shaded area i s leases t h a t we operate here 

11 i n Section 27, 28, 33, and 34. And again, I've a c t u a l l y 
12 i d e n t i f i e d i t w i t h the blue squares. You can t e l l my 

13 PowerPoint i s not q u i t e as p r o f e s s i o n a l l y done. There are the 

14 Yeso w e l l s t h a t e x i s t i n t h i s area, and the open c i r c l e i s the 

15 Geronimo w e l l i n question. 

16 Q. Okay. What i s E x h i b i t D, or 4? 

17 A. E x h i b i t No. 4 a c t u a l l y i s b a s i c a l l y a C-115 

18 i n f o r m a t i o n . T h a n k f u l l y , Mr. Welch has given you some 

19 r e s e r v o i r engineering type of f i g u r e s . But you can remember he 

20 mentioned the f a c t t h a t the Hanover State No. 3 was completed 

21 i n l i k e the middle of '07, I t h i n k he said . You're l o o k i n g 

22 here at a February, '08, C-115, which shows the production from 

23 t h a t No. 3 w e l l at 118 b a r r e l s f o r the month of February. 

24 So i f you d i v i d e d t h a t by 28, you could see t h a t i t ' s 

25 probably about a f o u r - b a r r e l a day producer. I f you look back, 
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1 we've t r i e d t o provide i n f o r m a t i o n on the other Yeso producers 

2 t h a t were accompanied on the previous map. You can see, i f you 

3 get t o the l a s t page, t h a t the most s i g n i f i c a n t producer at the 

4 time of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r C-115 was the A State No. 2. And i t ' s 

5 production a t t h a t time was 766 b a r r e l s of o i l f o r the month, 

6 as a new d r i l l . 

7 And i f you take 766 and d i v i d e i t by 28, you would 

8 get 27 b a r r e l s a day. I don't remember. Did we have 29 days 

9 t h i s year? Yeah. We had 29 days, so I need t o d i v i d e i t by 

10 29. So a c t u a l l y your prod u c t i o n would 26.4 b a r r e l s a day of 

11 o i l average. And i t was a r e l a t i v e l y new w e l l at t h a t time. 

12 MR. EZEANYIM: And what i n f o r m a t i o n i s t h i s 

13 i n d i c a t i n g f o r us? 

14 THE WITNESS: The h i g h l i g h t e d shades are Yeso 

15 production t h a t correspond w i t h the Yeso boxes on the previous 

16 e x h i b i t . 

17 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. 

18 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry): Mr. M i l l e r , what's 

19 E x h i b i t No. 5? 

20 A. E x h i b i t No. 5 i s b a s i c a l l y a mud log of the 

21 Geronimo w e l l bore. I t winds up the p o r t i o n of the mud l o g 

22 t h a t I've a c t u a l l y -- I've copied here f o r you, i s the i n t e r v a l 

23 t h a t i s the Yeso Formation. You can see t h a t there are 

24 a c t u a l l y shows of o i l i n the Yeso as i t was d r i l l e d by 

25 Dominion. And you can see t h a t there were also gas shows t h a t 
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1 correspond w i t h i t , b a s i c a l l y from a depth of 3500 f e e t t o a 

2 depth of a l i t t l e b i t above 4300 f e e t . 

3 Q. Okay. And what i s E x h i b i t No. 6? 

4 A. E x h i b i t No. 6 i s b a s i c a l l y a d e n s i t y neutron l o g 

5 t h a t corresponds t o the same i n t e r v a l as the mud l o g . And 

6 b a s i c a l l y i t would give an i n d i c a t i o n t o someone t h a t was a 

7 l i t t l e more t e c h n i c a l l y competent than I t h a t there was 

8 p o r o s i t y t o b e l i e v e t h a t the w e l l could be p e r f o r a t e d , t r e a t e d 

9 and a c t u a l l y completed as a producing w e l l . 
10 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , w i l l the g r a n t i n g of Judah's 

11 a p p l i c a t i o n be i n the best i n t e r e s t of conservation and 

12 p r e v e n t i o n of waste and the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

13 A. No. And probably, you know, what I f a i l e d t o 

14 mention i n j u s t the discussion t h a t I've given you on those 

15 arguments before, as the previous witness t e s t i f i e d , the 

16 reserves f o r those w e l l s are f a i r l y marginal i n t h i s area. And 

17 as a r e s u l t , obviously, our a b i l i t y t o re-enter t h i s w e l l bore, 

18 which i s on our t r a c t s of land, and t o be able t o re-complete 

19 t h a t as a producing o i l and gas w e l l , j u s t as t h e i r r e - e n t r y i s 

20 much less expensive than a new d r i l l , our r e - e n t r y f o r t h i s 

21 w e l l bore f o r the completion of the Yeso Formation would 

22 probably make i t an economic p r o j e c t today. 

23 Q. For E x h i b i t s 1 through 6, were they e i t h e r 

24 prepared by you or compiled under your d i r e c t supervision? 

25 A. Yes, they were. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
83223910-c5b2-478f-95fb-ce3bb828dab3 



Page 64 

1 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We move the admission of E x h i b i t s 1 

2 through 6 i n t o evidence. 

3 MR. EZEANYIM: Any ob j e c t i o n ? 

4 MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

5 MR. EZEANYIM: E x h i b i t s 1 through 6 w i l l be admitted 

6 i n t o evidence. Mr. Bruce? 

7 [Respondent's E x h i b i t s 1 through 6 admitted i n t o 

8 evidence.] 

9 MR. BRUCE: Yeah. Just a few questions of 

10 Mr. M i l l e r . 

11 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

12 BY MR. BRUCE: 

13 Q. Mr. M i l l e r , under a JOA, doesn't i t r e q u i r e 

14 approval of -- when a w e l l i s d r i l l e d , who has t o approve the P 

15 and A of the well? 

16 A. When a w e l l i s plugged and abandoned, the owners 

17 are n o t i f i e d of the proposed plugged and abandonment. 

18 Q. Do they have the r i g h t t o take over the w e l l bore 

19 i f they so desire? 

20 A. They do. They u s u a l l y get i n t o an argument as to 

21 how much the equipment and a l l i s worth. And i t becomes --

22 i t ' s u s u a l l y a debate t h a t you can work out. 

23 Q. Did -- and obviously, i n t h i s w e l l , Marbob or 

24 P i t c h Energy d i d not decide t o take over the w e l l bore? 

25 A. Reference was made t o the f a c t t h a t t h i s w e l l 
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1 stayed i n a TA s t a t u s f o r a considerable l e n g t h of time. 

2 Marbob had numerous discussions w i t h Dominion regarding the 

3 ownership of various i n t e r v a l s of r i g h t s up and down t h i s w e l l 

4 bore and p o t e n t i a l re-completions of those r i g h t s . And there 

5 was a d i s p u t e between the g e o l o g i s t of our company and t h e i r 

6 company and the OCD g e o l o g i s t -- who now works f o r , I b e l i e v e , 

7 Chesapeake -- as t o what p a r t i c u l a r i n t e r v a l s and l o g tops were 

8 c o r r e c t l y or i n c o r r e c t l y i d e n t i f i e d , what i n t e r v a l s -- who 

9 owned what. 

10 There were a l o t of discussions on t h i s w e l l bore as 

11 t o re-completion ideas. And as a r e s u l t , when they came 

12 forward, we b e l i e v e d t h a t since i t was on our lease, t h a t we 

13 would have o p p o r t u n i t y at any time i n the f u t u r e t h a t we so 

14 choose -- because of the f a c t t h a t we owned an i n t e r e s t i n the 

15 w e l l bore, and i t was our o i l and gas lease t o re-enter i t --

16 t h a t i t was j u s t cleaner t o l e t them plug i t out and t o then 

17 proceed at a l a t e r time t o the r e - e n t r y . 

18 Q. What would be easier at a l a t e r time i f you 

19 couldn't come t o terms r i g h t then? 

20 A. Because l a t e r times, the JOA had expired and i t 

21 would be our r i g h t s . The JOA d i d not cover the shallow 

22 horizons. 

23 Q. The operator was Louis Dreyfus Natural Gas 

24 Corporation. Do you know who the successor t o Louis Dreyfus 

25 is? 
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1 A. Louis Dreyfus became Dominion. Dominion put a l l 

2 of t h e i r assets up f o r b i d some time ago i n southeast 

3 New Mexico. Their successor i s Los Lobos. 

4 Q. Lobos Energy Partners? 

5 A. Lobos Energy, yeah. Very good. I'm glad you 

6 knew the answer t o t h a t question. Lobos Energy Partners. 

7 Q. The reason I asked, Mr. M i l l e r , i s I don't know 

8 i f you saw Judah's E x h i b i t 1, the s t i p u l a t i o n which was signed 

9 i n p a r t , on behalf of Lobos Energy Partners. I'm j u s t 

10 r e f l e c t i n g t h a t t o show t h a t , obviously, Lobos doesn't have any 

11 o b j e c t i o n t o the use of t h i s w e l l bore. 

12 A. Right. Lobos doesn't own the r i g h t s t h a t would 

13 be contemplated. They had no r i g h t s under the JOA t o those 

14 r i g h t s t h a t are being looked a t . 

15 Q. Just two more questions: The assignment, your 

16 E x h i b i t 1, was t o Marbob and Bulldog. By merger and/or name 

17 change, Bulldog i s now P i t c h Energy, i s i t not? 

18 A. I t wound up being a t h i n g where 

19 Mr. Shufflebarger, who was a c t u a l l y a person i n Albuquerque, he 

20 died. His w i f e died. They l e f t t h e i r money t o c h a r i t y . The 

21 c h a r i t y objected t o the cost by the t r u s t department at the 

22 bank. They asked -- the c h a r i t y asked t h a t i t be up f o r 

23 a u c t i o n . The p r o p e r t i e s were sold i n a competitive a u c t i o n . 

24 We were the successful high bidder. 

25 At t h a t time, Marbob had a s i s t e r non-operated 
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1 c o r p o r a t i o n c a l l e d Bulldog Energy Corporation. I n 1992, when 

2 Mr. Chase and Mr. Gray, who were pa r t n e r s i n Marbob and 

3 Bulldog, b a s i c a l l y s p l i t t h e i r p a r t n e r s h i p , they d i d a 

4 c o r p o r a t i o n r e o r g a n i z a t i o n . They wound up -- Marbob made 

5 assignments of p r o p e r t i e s t o an e n t i t y c a l l e d Chase O i l 

6 Corporation. Bulldog Energy Corporation made assignments of 

7 i n t e r e s t t h a t Bulldog held t o a c o r p o r a t i o n c a l l e d P i t c h Energy 

8 Corporation. At t h a t time, Chase O i l Corporation and P i t c h 

9 Energy Corporation were wholly owned s u b s i d i a r y corporations of 

10 those companies. 

11 When the i n t e r e s t s were assigned, there was a 

12 t a x - f r e e exchange of stock between the Chase Family and the 

13 Gray Family, w i t h the r e s u l t being t h a t the r e s u l t i n g Bulldog 

14 Energy and Chase O i l Corporation had the Chase assets i n them. 

15 Resulting Marbob Energy and P i t c h Energy Corporation had the 

16 Gray Family assets i n them. This p r o p e r t y was one of the 

17 assets t h a t Bulldog assigned t o P i t c h Energy Corporation. 

18 Q. So i t was a s p l i t t i n g of assets, so b a s i c a l l y you 

19 wouldn't own each others' p r o p e r t i e s ? 

20 A. That's c o r r e c t . There were only two issues t h a t 

21 were not s p l i t at the time i n '92. There was a di s p o s a l w e l l 

22 t h a t was common t o m u l t i p l e leases, and there was an o v e r s i g h t 

23 by the land department, myself -- at t h a t time -- of a lease 

24 t h a t we had acquired, some fee minerals and surface c a l l e d the 

25 Ten Dead Lease down near Lakewood. And we b a s i c a l l y l e f t t h a t 
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1 one lease as common ownership of surface and minerals w i t h both 

2 companies. 

3 Q. Just one f i n a l question, Mr. M i l l e r . I f t h i s 

4 subject w e l l i s used as a s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l and i t ' s 

5 p r o p e r l y completed as a sa l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l , the reserves 

6 i n the Yeso w i l l not be l o s t , w i l l they? 

7 A. They w i l l not be l o s t . I t winds up being a t h i n g 

8 where we have the State MO w e l l t h a t was d r i l l e d by Amoco years 

9 ago which we converted, which has been t e s t i f i e d t o p r e v i o u s l y , 

10 t o s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l , and t h a t w e l l i s s t i l l a sa l t w a t e r 

11 d i s p o s a l w e l l . We also have a w e l l i n Section 23 of 1728 t h a t 

12 f e l l about a mile f u r t h e r t o the east which was converted years 

13 ago t o s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l . And i t ' s a t h i n g where none of the 

14 reserves w i l l be l o s t , but the a b i l i t y t o capture them may be 

15 w e l l past my l i f e t i m e . 

16 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, Mr. Examiner. 

17 MR. EZEANYIM: Ms. Munds? 

18 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No f u r t h e r questions, Mr. Examiner. 

19 MR. BROOKS: How much you f i g u r e i t would cost t o 

20 d r i l l a new w e l l t o the Gl o r i e t a ? 

21 THE WITNESS: About a m i l l i o n d o l l a r s at today's 

22 cost, u n f o r t u n a t e l y . And I w i l l a f f i r m t h a t he's not 

23 over-estimating the cost of d r i l l i n g a new deep w e l l i n t h i s 

24 area. I n f a c t , our 12,500 Morrow we l l s are now AFE'd at $3.3 

25 m i l l i o n . Of course, t h a t ' s d r i l l e d and completed. 
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1 But d r i l l i n g t h i s w e l l , i f he could do i t f o r a 

2 m i l l i o n and a h a l f t o two m i l l i o n d o l l a r s , we probably ought t o 

3 be using them. 

4 MR. BROOKS: Thank you. That's a l l I have. 

5 EXAMINATION 

6 BY MR. WARNELL: 

7 Q. A couple of questions, Mr. M i l l e r , on the mud log 

8 versus the w i r e l i n e e l e c t r i c l o g , the mud log i s i n d i c a t i n g 

9 some gas shows. Do the e l e c t r i c logs always back up those gas 

10 shows? 

11 A. The e l e c t r i c logs -- and i t ' s a t h i n g where now 

12 you're asking questions probably b e t t e r asked of Mr. Welch 

13 i n s t e a d of myself, since I'm t e c h n i c a l l y not an engineer. But 

14 the e l e c t r i c logs can b a s i c a l l y give an i n d i c a t i o n of water 

15 s a t u r a t i o n i n a p a r t i c u l a r zone, whether or not t h a t zone might 

16 be, you know, productive of hydrocarbons or h i g h l y s a t u r a t e d i n 

17 s a l t w a t e r . The i n d i c a t i o n t h a t the engineers l o o k i n g a t t h i s 

18 l o g on our behalf, or our company engineers, i s t h a t they don't 

19 b e l i e v e t h a t there's any excessive s a l t w a t e r s a t u r a t i o n . 

20 We do u s u a l l y produce some water which i s i d e n t i f i e d 

21 on the C-115s w i t h a l l of our Yeso product i o n , but there was 

22 nothing i d e n t i f i e d i n these p a r t i c u l a r logs t h a t i n d i c a t e d t h a t 

23 the water s a t u r a t i o n s were any higher than we a n t i c i p a t e d out 

24 of our prod u c t i v e w e l l s . 

25 Q. On the w i r e l i n e logs, I not i c e d there — I t h i n k 
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1 i t ' s E x h i b i t 6 down around 3660 t o 3770, there's a yellow 

2 marker over there on the ri g h t - h a n d t r a c t ? 

3 A. Yeah. 

4 Q. Do you know what they're t r y i n g t o i d e n t i f y there 

5 or what --

6 A. A c t u a l l y — 

7 Q. Why d i d they want t o draw our a t t e n t i o n t o that ? 

8 A. That was on the l o g by our engineer -- who now 

9 doesn't work f o r us, the scoundrel. He went t o work f o r Nadel 

10 and Gussman. But t h a t was j u s t where he had tagged so t h a t --

11 what we does, i s when he works up a l o g f o r us and looks a t i t 

12 f o r p o t e n t i a l l y productive zones, he tags every i n t e r v a l w i t h a 

13 yellow marker, and i t s t i c k s out on the outside of the l o g 

14 so -- you know, t h a t way i t ' s j u s t an easy reference p o i n t f o r 

15 them t o know t h a t , you know, before you ignore something, you 

16 should a t l e a s t look at a l l the spots t h a t have been i d e n t i f i e d 

17 as -- tagged as p o t e n t i a l l y p r o d u c t i v e . That's the only 

18 reason -- the yellow was j u s t on the log when I made a copy of 

19 i t . I t ' s tagged. 

20 Q. For the record, t o my eye, i t looks l i k e a very 

21 rugose hole i n the r e . The p o r o s i t y -- I would be very 

22 suspicious of the p o r o s i t y i n th e r e , p a r t i c u l a r l y the d e n s i t y . 

23 When you look at the c o r r e c t i o n curve on the de n s i t y , i t ' s a l l 

24 over the page. Very good. Thank you. 

25 Another question. I t seems as though Dominion 
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1 plugged t h i s w e l l back i n '04? 

2 A. Yes, s i r . 

3 Q. And so i t sat there P & A'd. Nobody showed an 

4 i n t e r e s t i n i t u n t i l f o u r years l a t e r when Judah wants t o go 

5 ahead and make i t i n t o a d i s p o s a l w e l l . Why d i d n ' t Marbob show 

6 an i n t e r e s t i n t h a t w e l l f o r those four years? 

7 A. B a s i c a l l y , Marbob's a small company. We have 20 

8 people i n the o f f i c e . We operate 960 o i l and gas w e l l s . We 

9 have f i v e d r i l l i n g r i g s c u r r e n t l y contracted t o us. We have 

10 seven p u l l i n g u n i t s c u r r e n t l y c o n t r a c t e d t o us. We have a 

11 large lease p o s i t i o n , much of which i s subject t o term 

12 assignments, continuous development agreements, and farmout 

13 agreements. And i t was our b e l i e f t h a t we owned t h i s w e l l 

14 bore, t h a t we owned the lease, t h a t , you know, t h i s type of 

15 a p p l i c a t i o n , even i f OCD approved i t , t h a t we could go t o cou r t 

16 and b a s i c a l l y ask the court t o p r o t e c t our r i g h t s i n the w e l l 

17 bore and our pr o p e r t y . And as a r e s u l t , we d i d n ' t see any 

18 need. 

19 We also were l o o k i n g at the Hanover Well. You're 

20 going t o get more h i s t o r y now than you probably want, but you 

21 asked the question. The Hanover No. 2 Well over there i s a 

22 w e l l t h a t was subject t o one of your previous OCD orders. 

23 Because BP operates' what's c a l l e d the Washington 33, and BP 

24 wanted t o a c t u a l l y convert i n Section 33 f o r wa t e r f l o o d 

25 i n j e c t i o n w e l l s , our w e l l there, the Hanover Well No. 2 wound 
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1 up being a w e l l t h a t d i d not have casing -- or cement behind 

2 the casing -- across the produ c t i o n i n t e r v a l , or the i n j e c t i o n 

3 i n t e r v a l . 

4 As a r e s u l t , BP approached us because they needed t o 

5 a c t u a l l y get cement across t h e i r p r o d u c t i o n i n t e r v a l . I t 

6 brought our a t t e n t i o n -- when they approached us, i t brought 

7 our a t t e n t i o n t o s t a r t l o o k i n g a t the Hanover 2 and 3 w e l l s . 

8 The Hanover 3 was p r e v i o u s l y i d e n t i f i e d i n the OCD records as 

9 the State No. 1. I t was completed as a shallow Grayburg 

10 producer. And so we wound up r e - e n t e r i n g t h a t w e l l t h a t was 

11 p r e v i o u s l y shallow, plugged i t o f f , and went down and opened up 

12 the Yeso horizo n . 

13 And so, you know, b a s i c a l l y , I guess the short answer 

14 t o your question i s , when issues a r i s e , we tend t o react t o 

15 them. But b a s i c a l l y , when we b e l i v e our r i g h t s are HVP, I 

16 would agree w i t h Mr. Welch t h a t given the u l t i m a t e recoveries 

17 out of those w e l l s , there i s not Yeso o i l being sucked out of 

18 Unit M across the l i n e . 

19 But we tend t o react t o p r o j e c t s , you know, i f 

20 they're HVP and nothing -- there's no issue w i t h them. I f i t ' s 

21 not a TA w e l l t h a t we're f i x i n g t o be i n t r o u b l e w i t h OCD or 

22 whatever, then i t was not on our radar screen f o r an immediate 

23 move. And also at the time, we had had so much controversy 

24 w i t h Dominion t h a t we d i d n ' t want t o do anything i n i t i a l l y 

25 t h e r e a f t e r because i t would look l i k e we were b a s i c a l l y 
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1 s lapping them since we had not made an agreement w i t h them on 

2 any of the shallow horizons -- t o then go out and 

3 re-complete -- re-enter and re-complete the w e l l i n i t i a l l y . 

4 MR. WARNELL: That's a l l I have, thank you. 

5 EXAMINATION 

6 BY MR. EZEANYIM: 

7 Q. Okay. Terry asked some of the questions I had 

8 f o r you, Mr. M i l l e r . I know the w e l l was plugged by Dominion. 

9 I s t h a t what the name i s ? And then when they plugged the w e l l , 

10 and you want t o re-enter i t , why d i d you al l o w them t o plug 

11 t h a t well? 

12 A. We allowed them t o plug i t , as I've s t a t e d 

13 e a r l i e r , because of the f a c t t h a t they had asked us about 

14 p a r t i c i p a t i n g and a c q u i r i n g r i g h t s t o re-complete i n those 

15 depths. And b a s i c a l l y , we e l e c t e d not t o allo w them t o j o i n . 

16 Those r i g h t s were not p a r t of the JOA. Shallow r i g h t s i n the 

17 r e s t of the west h a l f of Section 27 had not been committed t o 

18 the JOA. 

19 So we d i d n ' t see a reason f o r us t o a c t u a l l y allow 

20 Dominion the o p p o r t u n i t y t o p i c k up an i n t e r e s t i n our shallow 

21 r i g h t s , since t h a t was not p a r t of t h e i r o r i g i n a l proposal. 

22 But as I s t a t e d e a r l i e r , we d i d n ' t want to offe n d Dominion by 

23 i n i t i a l l y t r y i n g t o do the re-completion, and appearing t o be a 

24 bad pa r t n e r . 

25 Q. Okay. What depth i s the Yeso Formation, do you 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
83223910-c5b2-478f-95fb-ce3bb828dab3 



Page 74 

1 know? What depth i s the Yeso? 

2 A. G l o r i e t a Sand i s r i g h t t h e r e , I b e l i e v e , at 3520. 

3 I t ' s j u s t r i g h t below the G l o r i e t a Sand. And i t extends down, 

4 I b e l i e v e , t o what they c a l l -- some f o l k s r e f e r t o i t as the 

5 Tubb or the B l i n e b r y . And then below t h a t i s the Abo, and I 

6 b e l i e v e the Abo i n t h i s area i s about 6400 f e e t subsurface. 

7 Q. Let me get t o the crux of the matter here, from 

8 what I've heard from Ms. Munds. So what you want t o do w i t h 

9 t h i s i s re-enter the w e l l , go t o the Yeso and produce some 

10 hydrocarbons. I s t h a t what you want t o do? Because you t h i n k 

11 you were i n t e r e s t e d i n i t from the beginning? 
12 A. Well, we b e l i e v e t h a t the Yeso would be 

13 p r o d u c t i v e . I mean, t h a t ' s why I've given you the mud logs and 

14 the e l e c t r i c l o g s . 

15 Q. Okay. 

16 A. We believe t h a t the reserves are marginal; i n 

17 other words, i t i s not a p r o l i f i c producer. And t h a t ' s why I 

18 provided you w i t h the C-115. And as the engineer s t a t e d , 

19 you're l o o k i n g at less than 10,000 b a r r e l s u l t i m a t e recovery --

20 was the numbers t h a t he a c t u a l l y used. And I'm not sure t h a t I 

21 disagree w i t h those. And as a r e s u l t , you know, to a c t u a l l y 

22 d r i l l a new w e l l would probably not be economic, unless the 

23 p r i c e of o i l does go t o $200 or $300 a b a r r e l , but I can't 

24 p r e d i c t the p r i c e of o i l at a l l . And as a r e s u l t , t h i s w e l l 

25 bore a f f o r d s us the o p p o r t u n i t y t o capture reserves t h a t might 
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1 not otherwise be captured. 

2 Q. So I t h i n k the purpose of the o b j e c t i o n i s t h a t 

3 the w e l l can be used b e n e f i c i a l l y i n s t e a d of using i t f o r an 

4 SWD. I s t h a t what you are implying? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Okay. 

7 A. And I ' l l be q u i t e honest w i t h you. Yesterday, 

8 our a t t o r n e y asked me i f there were other w e l l bores i n the 

9 area. They i n d i c a t e d t h a t Judah had had problems f i n d i n g other 

10 w e l l bores i n the area. A c t u a l l y , you know -- I came up e a r l y 

11 yesterday, so I went f i s h i n g and sat on a lake up i n northeast 

12 New Mexico. The f i s h i n g sucked. 

13 And reviewing the area, t h a t I'm aware of, I t h i n k 

14 there are probably some a d d i t i o n a l w e l l bores t h a t should be 

15 looked a t . But Judah and I can discuss those a f t e r t h i s 

16 matter, i f we reach some b e t t e r s o l u t i o n f o r them. Because I 

17 b e l i e v e there's a c t u a l l y a p o s s i b i l i t y t h a t there's a w e l l bore 

18 t h a t would even cost them less t o u t i l i z e . We'll c e r t a i n l y 

19 advise you i f we f i g u r e out something b e t t e r . 

20 Q. Very good. 

21 MR. EZEANYIM: Any more statements? 

22 MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

23 MR. EZEANYIM: At t h i s p o i n t , Case No. 14123 w i l l be 

24 taken under advisement. 

25 [Hearing concluded.] 
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